
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL MEETING @ 7:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chamber 

120 East Main Street – Apopka, Florida 32703 
March 18, 2015 

 
 
INVOCATION  

Pastor Doug Bankson - Victory Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

If you wish to appear before the City Council, please submit a Notice of Intent to Speak card 

to the City Clerk. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Proclamation - Presented to Vincent Esposito on achieving the rank of Eagle Scout 

2. Proclamation - Presented to Mack Reid, Chief Operating Officer of Boys & Girls Clubs 

of Central Florida, in recognition of Boys & Girls Club Week 

3. Proclamation - Presented to Michael Cooper Sr., in recognition of his many 

contributions promoting economic development within the City 

4. Parks and Recreation Master Plan - Presented by Jean Jreij, Public Services Director 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Authorize the purchase of property, in the amount of $10,000.00, located between M. 

A. Board Street and West 7th Street, subject to the appraisal and Phase I 

Environmental Assessment Study. 

Page 1



Page 2 
 

 

2. Award the annual fuel contract, for purchase and delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel, to 

Petroleum Traders Corporation and authorize the City Administrator to execute the 

contract. 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2372 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – 

Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC, from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) and 

Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) to Residential Medium (10 du/ac). (Parcel ID Nos.: 07-21-28-

0000-00-002 & 07-21-28-0000-00-023) [Ordinance No. 2372 meets the requirements 

for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on February 27, 2015.] 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2386 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - CHANGE OF ZONING 

- Florida Land Trust #111 – ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC - From “County” PD to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) for property located south of Sandpiper Street, 

west of North Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-

00-106, 02-21-28-0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-

28-0000-00-023, 03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-

072, 03-21-28-0000-00-073, and 03-21-28-0000-00-119) [Ordinance No. 2386 meets 

the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on March 

6, 2015.] 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2405 – FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING - FLORIDA 

LAND TRUST #111 – ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC – for property located south of 

Sandpiper Street, west of North Thompson Road, and east of Ustler Road, from 

“County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” R-1AAA. (Parcel ID #s: 02-21-28-0000-00-

106, 02-21-28-0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-

0000-00-023, 03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-072, 

03-21-28-0000-00-073, AND 03-21-28-0000-00-119) [This item was continued at the 

March 4, 2015 City Council meeting until the March 18, 2015 meeting.] 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2411 – FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – McCarthy McCollough, from “County” 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac), for property located at 

1505 West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003) 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2412 – FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – McCarthy 

McCollough, from “County” A-1 (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture) 

and RCE-1 for property located at 1505 West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-

0000-00-003) 

6. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-07 - Providing that the concessions at the Art & Foliage 

Festival will be handled by local community, civic, and religious organizations, that no 

Page 2



Page 3 
 

 

peddler's licenses will be issued during the Festival, and that no animals, leashed or 

unleashed, will be allowed in Kit Land Nelson Park during the Festival, except in 

compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

SITE APPROVALS 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock 

Springs Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; engineering firm is 

Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E., located south of 

West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-

0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003) 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Ponkan Reserve North, owned by Clyde Marie 

Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton; engineer is June Engineering Consultants, Inc., c/o 

Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn; and the property is located at 301 Ponkan Road.  

(Parcel ID Nos. 21-20-28-0000-00-003; 21-20-28-0000-00-004; 28-20-28-0000-00-003; 

28-20-28-0000-00-004) 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS 

1. Administrative Report - Glenn Irby - City Administrator 

MAYOR'S REPORT 

OLD BUSINESS 

     COUNCIL 

     PUBLIC 

NEW BUSINESS 

     COUNCIL 

1. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-08 - Supporting "One Apopka For Progress". 

2. City Council discussion and determination on the hiring of 30 summer positions 

through the Professional Opportunities Program for Students, Inc.  

     PUBLIC 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 

Page 3



Page 4 
 

 

  

Page 4



Page 5



Master Plan Process 

 

Step 1 

•What do we have? 

•Inventory and assess existing 
facilities 

 

Step 2 

•What do we need? 

•Meet future level of service 
based on future growth 

 

Step 3 

•What do we want? 

•Coordinate with Visioning Study & 
Transportation Master Plan 

•Public input 

•Funding 

 

Step 4 

•Prioritize 

 

Step 5 

• Implementation 

Page 6



Existing Public City Facilities Given Three Classifications  

Special Use – used 
for a specific 

purpose 

Community – Larger. 
Usually located near a 

major roadway. Service 
area = 3 mi or more 

Neighborhood – 
Smaller. Serves a 

particular 
neighborhood and 

accessed by 
walking or bicycling. 

Service radius =  

½ mi 

Alonzo Williams  

Park 

Northwest Rec  
Center 

Doctors Dog Park 

Page 7



Other Rec Opportunities 

- Lake Apopka  

  Restoration Area 

  (ecotourism) 

- Lake Apopka Loop Trail 

7 Parks and Facilities 

including the 

West Orange Trail 

13 Schools 

- 8 in city limits 

- 5 outside of city limits 

46 Private Pocket Parks 
- Not included in Level 
  of Service 

 

-Wekiwa Springs State Park 

 
Page 8



Trails – Existing & Planned 

Legend 

 
Existing Trails 
 
 
Proposed Trails 

 
 

Page 9



Coast-to-Coast Connector Trail - Overview 

Page 10



Coast-to-Coast Connector Trail – Apopka Area Detail 

Page 11



Existing Facilities Inventory  

Owned by City of Apopka 

•Museum of the Apopkans –   
0.62 acres 

•VFW/Community Center –     
1.72 acres 

•Doctor’s Dog Park – 5.12 acres 

 

•AAC/Buchan Pond – 13.72 acres 

•Edward’s Field/ Kit Land Park – 
13.86 acres 

•Northwest Rec Center –       
276.71 acres 

•Fran Carlton Center – 4.60 acres 

 

•Alonzo Williams Park –            
3.23 acres 

•Dream Lake Park – 1.46 acres 

•Lake Avenue Park – 1.15 acres 

Page 12



Existing Facilities Inventory  

Orange County Schools 

Schools Within City Limits 
•Apopka Elementary School   

•Apopka Memorial Middle 
School  

•Apopka High School & 9th 
Grade Center  

•Dream Lake Elementary School  

Schools Outside of City Limits 
•Clay Springs Elementary School  

•Lovell Elementary School  

•Wheatley Elementary School  

•Piedmont Lakes Middle School  

•Wekiva High School  

• Lakeville Elementary school  

• Rock Springs Elementary 

School  

• Wolf Lake Elementary School 

• Wolf Lake Middle School 

 

Page 13



 

• Lake Apopka 
Restoration Area –    
12,324 acres 

• Lake Apopka    
Loop Trail 

 

•West Orange Trail Apopka 
Station – 2.81 acres 

•John Bridges Center – 
14.15 acres 

•Kelly Park – 237 acres 

•Magnolia Park –          
49.16 acres 

•Roosevelt Nichols Park – 
6.28 acres 

•Tom Staley Park -            
0.7 acres 

•Wheatley Park –            
12.54 acres 

 

•Wekiwa Springs 
State Park –        
5975 acres 

Existing Facilities Inventory  

Owned by Other Entities 

Page 14



Master Plan Process 

 

Step 1 

•What do we have? 

•Inventory and assess existing 
facilities 

 

Step 2 

•What do we need? 

•Meet future level of service 
based on future growth 

 

Step 3 

•What do we want? 

•Coordinate with Visioning Study & 
Transportation Master Plan 

•Public input 

•Funding 

 

Step 4 

•Prioritize 

 

Step 5 

• Implementation 

Page 15



Page 16 
 

 

  

Page 16



Page 17 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Authorize the purchase of property, in the amount of $10,000.00, located between M. 

A. Board Street and West 7th Street, subject to the appraisal and Phase I 

Environmental Assessment Study. 

  

Page 17



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: March 18, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER:       
 

 

 

SUBJECT:     PURCHASE OF PROPERTY BETWEEN M. A. BOARD STREET AND WEST 7
TH

  

STREET. 

 

REQUEST:   APPROVE THE PURCHASE AND FUNDING OF PROPERTY FROM MR. NELSON B. 

HENRY IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,000.00 
 

 

SUMMARY: 

 

Staff negotiated with Mr. Nelson B. Henry for the purchase of land, at a cost of $10,000.00, subject to the 

appraisal and the Phase 1 Environmental Assessment Study.  The property is approximately 10,124 square feet, 

is located between M. A. Board Street and West 7
th

 Street and abuts City owned property near Williams Park, 

Parcel ID Number 09-21-28-0196-40-313.  The seller will pay for the closing costs, and the City will pay for the 

Phase 1 Environmental Assessment Study and the appraisal, not to exceed $3,000.00. 

 

The property will be used for future expansion of the park. 

 
 

  

FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

General Fund Reserves 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve the purchase and funding of property, in the amount of $10,000.00, as well as the appraisal and Phase 1 

Environmental Assessment Study at a cost not to exceed $3,000.00. 
  

 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 
Public Services Director  

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 

Page 18



 

Page 19



Page 20 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Award the annual fuel contract, for purchase and delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel, to 

Petroleum Traders Corporation and authorize the City Administrator to execute the 

contract. 

  

Page 20



 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: March 18, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING FROM:  Public Services 

SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS: 

OTHER:       
 

SUBJECT:     GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL PURCHASE AND DELIVERY CONTRACT 

 

Request:           AWARD THE ANNUAL FUEL CONTRACT TO PETROLEUM TRADERS 

CORPORATION 
 

SUMMARY: 
 

On February 25, 2015, staff received five sealed bids for the purchase and delivery of gasoline and diesel fuel.  

The price per gallon is indicated below, and then added to the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS) average 

price per gallon, which is posted weekly for the Orlando Terminal (#4), and includes all grades of unleaded 

gasoline, and diesel fuel #2, for the inclusive price: 
 

 Great Lakes 

Petroleum Co. 

Lynch Oil 

Co. 

Mansfield Oil 

Co. 

Palmdale 

Oil Co 

Petroleum 

Traders Corp. 

Pump off Fee N/A $25.00 $40.00 $0 $45.00 

Small Gas or Diesel 

Tanker: 100-4,000 gal  

+$0.1800 +$0.390 +$0.2640 $0.0953 +$0.1500 

Full Load 87 Gas Tanker: 

8,000 - 8,500 gal  

+$0.0350 +$0.1000 -$0.0002 $0.0168 -$0.0126 

Full Load Diesel Tanker: 

7,500 - 8,500 gal  

+$0.0350 +$0.1200 -$0.0205 $0.0168 -$0.0220 

Split Load (Gas and 

Diesel): 7,500 - 8,500 gal  

+$0.0350 +$0.1000 Gas -$0.0002 / 

Diesel -$0.0205 

$0.0168 -$0.0150 

 

Petroleum Traders Corporation is the lowest bidder. 

 

The term of this contract is for one year with an option to extend the term up to a minimum of three years. 
 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Divisions budget annually for fuel usage. 
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Award the annual fuel contract to Petroleum Traders Corporation, and authorize the City Administrator to 

execute the contract. 
 

DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Kilsheimer 
Commissioners  

City Administrator 
Community Development Director 

 
Finance Director 
Human Resources Director 
Information Technology Director 
Police Chief 

 
Public Services Director  

City Clerk  
Fire Chief  

 
Page 21



Page 22 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2372 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – 

Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC, from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) and 

Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) to Residential Medium (10 du/ac). (Parcel ID Nos.: 07-21-28-

0000-00-002 & 07-21-28-0000-00-023) [Ordinance No. 2372 meets the requirements 

for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on February 27, 2015.] 

  

Page 22



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 18, 2015 

          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 

          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 

           Adjacent Zoning Map 

           Adjacent Uses Map 

State Agency Comments 

City Response to FDOT 

           Ordinance No. 2372 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2372 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE 
SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - APOPKA CLEAR LAKE 
INVESTMENTS, LLC - CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE FROM 
RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC) AND AGRICULTURE (1 DU/5 AC) TO 
RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM (10 DU/AC) 

 
Request: SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2372 - 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT - LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND 
USE AMENDMENT – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS, LLC, FROM 
RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC) AND AGRICULTURE (1 DU/5 AC) TO 
RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM (10 DU/AC). (PARCEL ID NUMBERS 07-21-28-0000-00-
002 & 07-21-28-0000-00-023) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o Ken Stoltenberg 
 
ENGINEER:   Hendra & Associates, c/o Eric J. Hendra, P.E. 
  
LOCATION: East of S.R. 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of Lust Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant Land 
 
CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)(89.47 ac) and County A-2 (ZIP) (5.29 ac) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  None 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   94.76 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 454 Units 
    PROPOSED: 948 Units 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief  

 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Comp.Plan\2014\2014-01 Avian Pointe–Apopka Clear Lk Invest\1 Avian Pointe–Apopka Clear Lk Invest LS FLUM CC 03-18-15 2nd  Rd 

Page 23



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
City Council held the first hearing (aka “transmittal hearing) on August 16, 2014, for this proposed Future Land Use 
Amendment and accepted the first reading of Ordinance No. 2372 and authorized staff to transmit the packet to the 
reviewing State agencies, consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Amendment procedures set forth is Florida Statute 
163.3184(3).   Among state agencies, the Florida Department of Transportation sent the only comments to staff in a letter 
dated September 29, 2014.  Once comments are received by the State agencies, the City has 180 days to hold the final 
hearing.  The comments were received on September 29, 2014, therefore the 180 day deadline for a final hearing fell on or 
before March 28, 2015.  A staff response was prepared and will be forwarded to the State agencies after adoption of the 
proposed Future Land Use Amendment.   
 
Furthermore, the staff report from the August 16, 2014, City Council meeting indicates that the Planned Unit 
Development Application and Master Plan will appear before City Council, as well as Planning Commission, at the 
adoption hearing for the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment.   The master site plan and associated development 
agreement are not ready at this time for reasons stated below. 
 
City staff has supported the change in Future Land Use from Low Density to Medium Density Residential subject to the 
developer constructing a second road access to the subject site in order to disperse vehicle trips generated by new 
development.  The second road access will extend north of the subject site to W. Orange Avenue, following Peterson Road 
and King Street.  As this road improvement is not scheduled in the City’s capital improvement program, the burden to 
make this road happen is placed on the developer\applicant.   A development agreement will accompany the Master Plan 
to assure the road is constructed.   Since the City Council transmittal hearing, time to negotiate purchase of land to 
accommodate the new road took longer than expected for the applicant.  To assure that this road improvement is 
constructed to address transportation improvement needs for the additional vehicle trips generated by the Future Land Use 
Map Amendment, the applicant has recorded a deed restriction that limits development to five (5) units per acre until the 
road is constructed. A copy of the deed restriction will be submitted at the adoption hearing. 
 
STAFF REPORT COMMENTS FROM THE AUGUST 16, 2014 COUNCIL HEARING:   
 
Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-00-002 was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 1997, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1129

1
.   Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-00-023 was annexed into the City of Apopka on January 7, 2004, 

through the adoption of Ordinance No. 1621.    
 
Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-002:  89.47 acres 
Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-023:  5.29 acres 
 
The applicant requests to assign a Residential Medium Density Future Land Use Designation to the two above referenced 
parcels totaling approximately 94.76 acres.  An application has also been submitted to the City requesting a zoning 
category of Planned Unit Development for these same two parcels as well as the parcel abutting the northeast corner of 
the subject property (Parcel No. 07-21-28-0000-00-015).  This third parcel, owned by W.D. Long Family Farms et.al., is 
not part of the future land use amendment application and will retain its Residential Low Density Residential Land Use 
Designation.   
 
After the Future Land Use Amendment for the 94.76 acres has been transmitted to and reviewed by the Florida 
Department of Economic Opportunities and other state agencies, the applicant will request a Planning Unit Development 
zoning and master site plan approval for the two parcels owned by Apopka Clear Lake Investment and the one parcel 
owned by W.D. Long Family Farms et.al. 
 
The intent of the applicant, Apopka Clear Lake Investments, is to develop a residential community with a mix of single-
family homes, luxury apartments, and townhomes with residential amenities that include a bike trail that allows for 
connection to the Lake Apopka Loop Trail, resort-style community clubhouse and swimming pools, and a parks and open 
space system. In addition, the applicant desires to reserve a small area of the master site plan for flexible use zone that can 

                                                 
1
 Upon further review of the files Ordinance No. 1129 was repealed and the property re-annexed via Ordinance No. 1178, on May 20, 

1998. 

Page 24



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 3 
 
accommodate one or more of the following uses:  school or day care, boutique hotel, or a senior residential housing (such 
as an assisted living facility or age-restricted housing).    
 
The applicant requests to present a proposed master site plan for all three parcels at the transmittal hearing.  A master site 
plan application is currently under review by the Development Review Committee.  Between the transmittal hearing and 
the final adoption hearing for the Future Land Use Amendment, the applicant will finalize the master site plan for zoning 
hearings.   At the time the adoption hearing is held, the PUD zoning and master site plan will appear on the same hearing 
as the future land use amendment.   
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment for Residential Medium Density and 
determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    After the transmittal hearing, the applicant will submit to Orange County Public 
School an application for school capacity determination.  Prior to the adoption hearing for the Future Land Use 
amendment, the applicant must obtain an approved school capacity determination or school capacity mitigation 
agreement from the Orange County School Board. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly 
notified Orange County on June 10, 2014. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 8, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
August 6, 2014 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1

st
 Reading & Transmittal 

March 18, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading & Adoption 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
June 20, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 
July 11, 2014 – ¼ Page Ad w/Map 
February 20, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
March 13, 2015 – ¼ Page Ad w/Map 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use from Residential 
Low (0-5 du/ac) for approximately 89.47 acres and Agriculture for approximately 5.29 acres to Residential Medium 
Density (0-10 du/ac) for the property owned by Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o Ken Stoltenberg, subject to the 
information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 8, 2014, recommended approval (6-0) of the Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment – Large Scale – Future Land Use from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) (89.47 +/- acres) and Agriculture (5.29 
+/- acres) to Residential Medium Density (0-10 du/ac); and transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic 
Opportunity, for the property owned by Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o Ken Stoltenberg, subject to the 
information and findings in the staff report.  As part of the motion, the Planning Commission established that the Future 
Land Use amendment return to the Planning Commission with the master site plan prior to the amendment proceeding to 
City Council for the final adoption hearing. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on August 16, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2372; and authorized 
transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (f.k.a. Florida Department of Community Affairs). 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2372. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. Page 25



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) A-1; Mixed-EC Vacant Land (former Coca-Cola sprayfield 

property) 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1A; PUD Clear Lake Landing subdivision (near 

construction; Vacant Land/Nursery; Clear Lake 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) “County” A-1 (ZIP) Vacant Land 

West (County) “County” Rural (1 du/10 ac/Agricultural) “County” A-2 & A-1 S.R. 429 Tollway; Vacant Land (Lake Apopka 

Restoration Area) west of the tollway 

 
The property has access from the south from Lust Road. Development Review Committee supports the Medium 
Density Residential designation only if the applicant demonstrates prior to the adoption hearing a commitment 
to construct a two-lane road from the northern end of the subject property to W. Orange Avenue.  Such 
commitment likely will be established through a recordable development agreement approved by City Council. 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The area directly north of the subject site is predominantly developed for industrial and warehousing businesses.  
Over 200 acres just to the north is zoned for industrial uses.  To the northwest of the subject property, along the 
western alignment of undeveloped Peterson Road and along the existing Hermit Smith Road, over 300 acres is 
zoned for industrial uses.  To the west the subject property is bordered by S.R. 429, a four-lane divided tollway.  
To the southwest along Lust Road, the City has planned a location for its new water reclamation facility.  On the 
south side of Lust Road, vacant lands are currently assigned land use and zoning for single family homes and 
commercial.  East of the subject site is the proposed Clear Lake Landings single-family subdivision and Clear 
Lake. 
 
The proposed Medium Density residential will allow residential densities in the form of apartments and 
townhomes to concentrate near industrial and commercial development either existing or planned to the north 
and northwest.  It also will serve as a transition between S.R. 429 and single family residential development 
along Binion Road.  However, traffic volumes generated by the development densities proposed by Medium 
Density Residential will need additional roadway access besides Lust Road.  Thus, a second road to the north is 
necessary to accommodate development and vehicle trips generated by residential densities proposed at the 
subject site.  Therefore, the Development Review recommendation for Medium Density Residential is subject to 
the applicant demonstrating that a new northern road can be constructed from the northern project boundary to 
West Orange Avenue. 
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 
October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Plymouth Area” of the JPA.  The proposed 
FLUM Amendment request for a change from Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) to Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) is 
consistent with the terms of the JPA.  Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC, c/o Ken Stoltenberg, is the 
applicant of the proposed future land use amendment and proposed change of zoning for the Property, and has 
been notified of the hearing schedule.   At the time the JPA was established between the City and Orange 
County in 2002, the final alignment for S.R. 429 and the Wekiva Parkway were not known.  The “Plymouth 
Area” was prepared without consideration for the current S.R.429 alignment. 
 Page 26



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 5 
 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 

mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed 

against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 

Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features on this subject property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property is currently vacant.  The dominant soil, #5 
Candler Fine Sand, is excessively drained and has a very deep (72” to 80”) water table.  The Property is former 
agriculture land and is substantially devoid of trees.  An agricultural tax exemption is assigned by the County 
Property Appraiser’s office to the subject property for grazing. A Planned Unit Development and master site 
plan that was previously approved by City Council has expired.  The previous PUD master site plan proposed a 
total of 212 single family lots with a five-foot side yard setback. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: This property was annexed 
into the City on December 17, 1997 (Parcel ID # 07-21-28-0000-00-002) and January 7, 2004 (Parcel ID # 07-
21-28-0000-00-023).    If adopted the Land Use Map amendment has the potential to increase the population by 
1,315 persons.  Also, the Land Use Amendment is not anticipated to cause a substantial increase to the long-
range population projections provided in the Comprehensive Plan as property assigned an R-3 zoning was 
changed to accommodate an industrial Future Land Use and zoning in recent years (Property Industrial 
Enterprises-Bradshaw Road). 
  

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED: 454 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 1,207 persons 

PROPOSED: 948 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 2,522 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will provide housing to accommodate a year 2030 projected future 

population of 125,328 that is the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required for 

developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary Development 

Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and submit a habitat 

management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project site. 

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPCD / Capita;  81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  88,984 GPD Page 27



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 6 
 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  177,772 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A GPCD/Capita;  
 177 GPD/Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
 City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    95,340 GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   190,470 GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: Yes   

 

 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 
City of Apopka 
 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  4,828 lbs./cap/day 
 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  9,648 lbs./day/1000 SF 
 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
 
 

 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 Page 28



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 7 
 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: Lake Apopka 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 25 year - 24 hour design storm event plus additional 

      requirement for phosphorus loading.  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 24 hour design storm event plus additional 

      requirement for phosphorus loading.  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  3.62 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  7.2 AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None.    Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development 

plans to provide parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the 

new development. 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 29



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 8 
 

2014-01 – Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC 
Existing Max. Allowable Development: 454 Units 

Proposed Max. Allowable Development: 948 Units 
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) and Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) 
To: Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) 

 Parcel ID #s: 07-21-28-0000-00-002, 07-21-28-0000-00-023 
94.76 +/- Acres Combined 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

  

Subject 
Property 

Page 30



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Subject 
Property 

Page 31



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 
AVIAN POINTE – APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC – LARGE SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE REPORT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 
 

 

Page 32



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2372 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM RESIDENTIAL LOW 

(0-5 DU/AC) AND AGRICULTURE (1 DU/5 AC) TO RESIDENTIAL 

MEDIUM (10 DU/AC) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED EAST OF S.R. 429, SOUTH OF PETERSON ROAD, AND 

NORTH OF LUST ROAD, COMPRISING 94.76 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

AND OWNED BY APOPKA CLEAR LAKE INVESTMENTS LLC, C/O 

KEN STOLTENBERG; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2361; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety by Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Community Affairs or the Administration Commission, as may be 

applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with Chapter 

163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.  

  

Page 33



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2372 

PAGE 2 

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

18
th

 day of March, 2015. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: August 6, 2014 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

March 18, 2015 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: June 20, 2014 

       July 11, 2014 

       February 20, 2015 

       March 13, 2015  

Page 34



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Ordinance No. 2372 
 

2014-01 – Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lake Investments LLC 
Existing Max. Allowable Development: 454 Units 

Proposed Max. Allowable Development: 948 Units 
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) and Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) 
To: Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) 

Parcel ID #s:  07-21-28-0000-00-002, 07-21-28-0000-00-023 
94.76 +/- Acres Combined 

 
 

VICINITY MAP  

Page 35



  

Thomas H. Inserra 
Director, Office of Educational Facilities 

www.fldoe.org 
325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1014  |  Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400  |  850-245-0494 

© 2014, Florida Department of Education. All Rights Reserved. 

 

 

 

<Start Text Here>  
         

 
 
September 9, 2014 
 
 
 
Mr. David Moon, AICP, Planning Manager 
City of Apopka 
P.O. Box 1229 
Apopka, Florida 32704-11229 
Via E-mail: dmoon@apopka.net 
 
Dear Mr. Moon: 
 

Re: Apopka 14-1 ESR
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review the Apopka’s proposed 14-1 ESR amendment package, which 
the Florida Department of Education received on August 27, 2014. According to the department’s 
responsibilities under section 163.3184(3)(b), Florida Statutes, I reviewed the amendment considering 
provisions of chapter 163, part II, F.S., and to determine whether the proposal, if adopted, would have the 
potential to create adverse effects on public school facilities. This letter includes a technical assistance 
comment which the city should address prior to adoption to ensure that adequate public school capacity 
will be available. 
 
The package proposes amendment of the city’s future land use map for the Avian Pointe planned unit 
development. Although the proposed amendment would permit a maximum of 948 residential dwelling 
units, the applicant proposes to limit the residential development program to 762 residential units. The 
support documents do not demonstrate prior coordination with Orange County Public Schools pursuant to 
the Amended Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning and Implementation of 
Concurrency, nor do they demonstrate the availability of adequate school capacity as required by Section 
163.3177(6)(a)8.a, F.S.  
 
Given this, I spoke with Tyrone Smith of Orange County Public Schools to better understand the local 
conditions with respect to school capacity. He has received the application for public school capacity 
determination but has not completed the review. Therefore, as noted in the staff report, prior to adoption 
of the amendment the city should ensure that the applicant has obtained an approved school capacity 
determination or has entered into a capacity enhancement agreement with the School Board of Orange 
County.  
  

State Board of Education 
 
Gary Chartrand, Chair 
John R. Padget, Vice Chair 
Members 
Ada G. Armas, M.D. 
John A. Colon 
Marva Johnson 
Rebecca Fishman Lipsey 
Andy Tuck 

Pam Stewart 
Commissioner of Education 

Page 36



Mr. David Moon 
September 9, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 

Thomas H. Inserra 
Director, Office of Educational Facilities 

www.fldoe.org 
325 W. Gaines Street, Suite 1014  |  Tallahassee, FL 32399-0400  |  850-245-0494 

© 2014, Florida Department of Education. All Rights Reserved. 

Again, thank you for the opportunity to review and comment. Please contact me at 850-245-9312 or 
Tracy.Suber@fldoe.org, if you have questions about this letter, or if I may be of assistance. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Tracy D. Suber 
Growth Management and Facilities Policy Liaison 
 
TDS/ 
 
cc:   Mr. Tyrone Smith, Orange County Public Schools 

Mr. James Stansbury and Ms. Ashley Porter, DEO/State Land Planning Agency 

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



File: H:\OOC\Planning\Growth Management\CPA Project Files\Apopka_Orange\Review\2014\14-1ESR\Proposed\Apopka 14-1ESR_Proposed_Cvrltr.Docx

www.dot.state.fl.us

Florida Department of Transportation

RICK SCOTT
GOVERNOR

133 S. Semoran Boulevard.
Orlando, FL 32807

ANANTH PRASAD, P.E.
SECRETARY

September 25, 2014

David B. Moon, AICP
Planning Manager, City of Apopka
P.O. Box 1229
Apopka, FL 32704-1229

SUBJECT: PROPOSED COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: CITY OF APOPKA

DEO #: 14-1ESR

Dear Mr. Moon:

The Department of Transportation has completed its review of the above proposed
Comprehensive Plan Amendment as requested in your memorandum dated, August 25, 2014.

We appreciate the opportunity to participate in this review process and we offer our comments
with this letter. As proposed, the amendment appears to adversely impact SR 500/US 441, which
the Department considers to be a transportation facility of state importance. You’ll find that our
comments attached provide recommendations to address the Department’s concerns.

If you have any questions, you may contact Todd Davis at 386-943-5422 or by e-mail at
todd.davis@dot.state.fl.us.

Sincerely,

for

Susan Sadighi, P.E.
Intermodal Systems Development Manager

attachment

C: Alberto Vargas, Orange County Jim Wood, FDOT
Renzo Nastasi, Orange County Maria Cahill, FDOT
Anganie Durbal-Mohammed, Orange County James Stansbury, DEO
Andrew Landis, East Central Florida RPC Ray Eubanks, DEO

Page 43



Florida Department of Transportation
Intermodal Systems Development

Growth Management Unit

Page 1 of 4

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSED REVIEW COMMENTS

Local Government: City of Apopka

DEO Amendment #: 14-1ESR

Date Amendment Received FDOT: 8/25/2014

Review Comments Deadline: 9/26/2014

Today’s Date: 9/25/2014

FDOT Contact: Todd Davis, P.E. Reviewed by: Melody Butler, P.E. (Georgia)
FDOT District 5 – In-house Consultant Rohan Sadhai, AICP
Planning & Corridor Development Project Manager Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc.

Telephone: 386-943-5422 407-839-4006
Fax: 407-275-4188 407-839-4008
E-mail: todd.davis@dot.state.fl.us mbutler@vhb.com
File: H:\OOC\Planning\Growth Management\CPA Project Files\Apopka_Orange\Review\2014\14-1ESR\Proposed\Apopka 14-1ESR_Proposed_Review.docx

GENERAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The City of Apopka has submitted the proposed City of Apopka 14-1ESR large scale comprehensive plan
amendment package, for a land use designation change of approximately 94.76 acres of land located
east of SR 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of Lust Road. The City is requesting to change the
future land use designation from Residential Low and Agriculture to Residential Medium.

The pertinent FLUM designations and descriptions for the amendments include the following:

• CITY OF APOPKA – RESIDENTIAL LOW

Maximum allowed density: Residential – 5 dwelling units per one (1) acre

• CITY OF APOPKA – AGRICULTURE

Maximum allowed density: Residential – 1 dwelling unit per five (5) acres

• CITY OF APOPKA – RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM

Maximum allowed density: Residential – 10 dwelling units per one (1) acre

Page 44



Florida Department of Transportation
Intermodal Systems Development

Growth Management Unit

Page 2 of 4

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSED REVIEW COMMENTS

Local Government: City of Apopka

DEO Amendment #: 14-1ESR

Date Amendment Received FDOT: 8/25/2014

Review Comments Deadline: 9/26/2014

Today’s Date: 9/25/2014

FDOT Contact: Todd Davis, P.E. Reviewed by: Melody Butler, P.E. (Georgia)
FDOT District 5 – In-house Consultant Rohan Sadhai, AICP
Planning & Corridor Development Project Manager Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc.

Telephone: 386-943-5422 407-839-4006
Fax: 407-275-4188 407-839-4008
E-mail: todd.davis@dot.state.fl.us mbutler@vhb.com
File: H:\OOC\Planning\Growth Management\CPA Project Files\Apopka_Orange\Review\2014\14-1ESR\Proposed\Apopka 14-1ESR_Proposed_Review.docx

FLUM AMENDMENT

Elements: Future Land Use Element

Rule Reference: Chapter 163, Florida Statutes

Background:

The proposed amendment affects 94.76 acres of land located in the City of Apopka. The properties are
located east of SR 429, south of Peterson Road, and north of Lust Road. The map amendment changes
the future land use designation from Residential Low and Agriculture to Residential Medium. The table
below shows the trip generation potential for the currently adopted and proposed land uses, and the
change in trips as a result of the amendment.

Table 1: Trip Generation Potential of Parcels Affected by FLUM Amendment

Scenario Land Use Designation
Maximum
Allowed
Intensity

ITE Land
Use Code

Size of Development
Daily
Trips

P.M. Peak
Hour
TripsAcres

Allowed
Development

Adopted
Residential Low

5 dwelling units/
1 acre

210 89.47 447 d.u. 4,165 404

Agriculture
1 dwelling unit/

1 acre
210 5.29 1 d.u. 15 2

Proposed Residential Medium
10 dwelling units/

1 acre
220 94.76 948 d.u. 6,304 588

Net Change in Trips +2,124 +182

Source: ITE Trip Generation Manual 9th Edition

The analysis shows that the amendment would increase the trip generation potential of the 94.76-acre
property by approximately 2,124 daily trips and 182 p.m. peak hour trips.

The State roadway segments within three miles of the site that could be impacted by the amendment are
shown in the table on the following page, for the existing (YR 2014) and future (YR 2035) projected
volumes.

Page 45



Florida Department of Transportation
Intermodal Systems Development

Growth Management Unit

Page 3 of 4

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSED REVIEW COMMENTS

Local Government: City of Apopka

DEO Amendment #: 14-1ESR

Date Amendment Received FDOT: 8/25/2014

Review Comments Deadline: 9/26/2014

Today’s Date: 9/25/2014

FDOT Contact: Todd Davis, P.E. Reviewed by: Melody Butler, P.E. (Georgia)
FDOT District 5 – In-house Consultant Rohan Sadhai, AICP
Planning & Corridor Development Project Manager Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc.

Telephone: 386-943-5422 407-839-4006
Fax: 407-275-4188 407-839-4008
E-mail: todd.davis@dot.state.fl.us mbutler@vhb.com
File: H:\OOC\Planning\Growth Management\CPA Project Files\Apopka_Orange\Review\2014\14-1ESR\Proposed\Apopka 14-1ESR_Proposed_Review.docx

Table 2: State Roadway Segments Affected by FLUM Amendment

Roadway(s) Segment(s)
SHS/
SIS?

2014 2035

LOS
Stan-
dard

Service
Volume
at LOS

Standard

AADT
Ac-

cept-
able?

LOS
Stan-
dard

Service
Volume
at LOS

Standard

AADT
Ac-

cept-
able?

SR 500/
US 441

Edgewood Dr/Midland Ave to
CR 435A/Park Ave

Y D 34,020 39,900 N D 34,020 48,200 N

CR 435A/Park Ave to CR
437A/Central Ave

Y D 32,400 33,800 N D 32,400 40,900 N

CR 437A/Central Ave to SR
451

Y D 41,790 33,800 Y D 41,790 40,900 Y

SR 451 to Errol Pkwy Y D 41,790 36,400 Y D 41,790 45,700 N

Errol Pkwy to CR
437/Orange Ave

Y D 41,790 38,400 Y D 41,790 46,400 N

CR 437/Orange Ave to
Junction Rd/Orlando Urban
Boundary

Y D 41,790 32,900 Y D 41,790 52,400 N

SR 429

West Rd to CR 437A Y D 74,400 31,800 Y D 74,400 55,400 Y

CR 437A to US 441/SR 500 Y D 74,400 25,000 Y D 74,400 46,000 Y

Source: FDOT District Five 2014 LOS_ALL Report

Review Comments:
Consistent with Florida Statutes 163.3184(3)(b)2 and based on the Departments review of the proposed
amendment:

• This Amendment has the potential to adversely impact several segments of state road (SR)
500/US 441, which the Department consider to be transportation facilities of state importance.
The proposed plan amendment has the potential to create unacceptable levels of service on this
state road, which represent adverse impacts. Measures the City may take to eliminate, reduce, or
mitigate the adverse impacts are described below under Recommendations.

• Per FS 163.3177(6)(b)1.e, the City’s Transportation Element is required to identify how it will
meet the identified needs of the projected transportation system.

• Per FS 163.3177(3)(a)4, the City is required to identify in its Capital Improvements Element
improvements necessary to ensure that the City’s adopted level-of-service (LOS) standards are

Page 46



Florida Department of Transportation
Intermodal Systems Development

Growth Management Unit

Page 4 of 4

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT PROPOSED REVIEW COMMENTS

Local Government: City of Apopka

DEO Amendment #: 14-1ESR

Date Amendment Received FDOT: 8/25/2014

Review Comments Deadline: 9/26/2014

Today’s Date: 9/25/2014

FDOT Contact: Todd Davis, P.E. Reviewed by: Melody Butler, P.E. (Georgia)
FDOT District 5 – In-house Consultant Rohan Sadhai, AICP
Planning & Corridor Development Project Manager Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc.

Telephone: 386-943-5422 407-839-4006
Fax: 407-275-4188 407-839-4008
E-mail: todd.davis@dot.state.fl.us mbutler@vhb.com
File: H:\OOC\Planning\Growth Management\CPA Project Files\Apopka_Orange\Review\2014\14-1ESR\Proposed\Apopka 14-1ESR_Proposed_Review.docx

achieved and maintained for the 5-year period and identify these improvements as either funded
or unfunded and identify a level of priority for funding.

Recommendations:

• Reduce the maximum intensity of development allowed on the parcels so that no adverse
impacts to state roads occur; or,

• If the City’s existing Transportation Element fulfills the requirement of FS 163.3177(6)(b)1.e, the
specific references should be identified in the amendment package. If the City’s Transportation
Element does not fulfill this requirement, the City should amend its Transportation Element to
fulfill this requirement. For example, either the existing Transportation Element or the amendment
to the Transportation Element should specifically identify how the City plans to meet the identified
needs of the projected transportation system (for the roadways identified as not meeting their
LOS standard in the traffic study submitted with the proposed amendment) for the near-term and
long-term horizons; and,

• If the City’s existing Capital Improvements Element fulfills the requirement of FS 163.3177(3)(a)4,
the specific references should be identified in the amendment package. If the City’s Capital
Improvements Element does not fulfill this requirement, the City should amend its Capital
Improvements Element to fulfill this requirement. For example, either the existing Capital
Improvements Element or the amendment to the Capital Improvements Element should
specifically identify how the City plans to ensure that the City’s adopted LOS standards are
achieved and maintained (for the roadways identified as not meeting their LOS standard in the
traffic study submitted with the proposed amendment) for the 5-year period and identify these
improvements as either funded or unfunded and identify a level of priority for funding.

Please provide the adopted plan within two weeks of adoption, in order to assist in facilitating review
within the required 30-day time frame from adoption, as required by Statutes (Expedited State Review
Amendment Process Section 163.3184(3) and (5), Florida Statutes).

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2386 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - CHANGE OF ZONING 

- Florida Land Trust #111 – ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC - From “County” PD to “City” 

Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) for property located south of Sandpiper Street, 

west of North Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-

00-106, 02-21-28-0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-

28-0000-00-023, 03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-

072, 03-21-28-0000-00-073, and 03-21-28-0000-00-119) [Ordinance No. 2386 meets 

the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on March 

6, 2015.] 

  

Page 53



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 18, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2386 
           PUD Master Plan\PDP  
  
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111 – ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING - 
FROM “COUNTY” PD TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-1A); AND 
MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

     
Request: SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2386 – CHANGE IN 

ZONING FOR FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111 – ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC FROM 
“COUNTY” PD (ZIP) (RESIDENTIAL) TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
(PUD/R-1A) (RESIDENTIAL) AND APPROVAL OF THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
MASTER SITE PLAN. (PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 02-21-28-0000-00-106, 02-21-28-
0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-0000-00-023, 03-
21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-072, 03-21-28-0000-00-
073, AND 03-21-28-0000-00-119) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee 
 
LOCATION: South of Sandpiper Street, west of North Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Abandoned Single Family Homes 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” PD (“City” ZIP)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential Subdivision (49 Single Family Lots) 
 
FUTURE LAND USE  
DESIGNATION: “City” Residential Very Low Suburban (0- 2.0 du/ac) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   Combined total Acreage: 58.23 +/- Total Acres (48.4 developable acres) 
     
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:                  EXISTING: 49 Dwelling Units (as originally approved by the Orange County BCC; 

plans expired) 
    PROPOSED: 49 Dwelling Units 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.     Public Ser. Dir.  
Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief  
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2014\Florida Land Trust #111\Florida Land Trust #111 ZON CC 03-18-15 2nd Rd 

 
Page 54



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Responding to comments presented to City Council at past meetings and hearings, the 

applicant has prepared an optional Master Plan.  At the hearing, if desired by City Council, a presentation can be made 

explaining the differences between the plan presented in Exhibit “A” and that presented in Exhibit “C”. 

 

The subject property is located on the south side of Sandpiper Street, west of North Thompson Road, and east of Ustler 

Road.  Development Standards for the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan are provided within the PUD 

ordinance.   A general description of the proposed residential community is provided below: 

 

Lots:  49 single family lots. 

 

Min. Lot Area:  PUD Master Plan sets lots ranging from 15,120 to 37,296 sq. ft.   

   Minimum developable lot area is 11,500 sq. ft.; 10,000 sq. ft. for lots containing wetlands 

 

Min. Lot Width:  85 ft. 

 

Min. Living Area: 2,200 sq. ft.  (the applicant proposed this minimum at the Planning Commission hearing) 

 

Density:  1.01 dwelling units (du) per acre (49 du\48.4 developable acres) 

 

Access: All lots access an internal road.  A single entrance road connects to Sandpiper Road.  No lots or 

new roads will connect to Ustler Road. 

 

Park: A minimum area of 15,000 sq. ft. will be provided for active recreation.  The park site plan will 

be submitted with the final development plan.  Park to be located in Tract “D”.  A small passive 

park is provided in Tract “N”. 

 

Buffers: 1. Sandpiper Road.  A ten foot wide landscape tract, owned by the HOA, follows the south 

 side of Sandpiper Road from the northeast corner of the project site to Lot 38.  The 

design of the buffer will follow that which appears in Exhibit titled “Northern Landscape 

Buffer”, and will contain a six-foot high shrub (within two years of planting, a tri-rail 

country style fence with stone or brick posts, and canopy trees or understory trees where 

suitable (taking into consideration the overhead power lines).  West of the project 

entrance, a tri-rail fence will extend westward to the open space area.    

 

2. Eastern project line. No buffer tract or easement.  The residential lots in this development 

project abut residential lots typically 1.3 to 1.7 acres in size. No buffer is required by 

code.  Lot 11 has a side yard setback of 20 feet to create additional separation from the 

eastern abutting lot. 

  

3. Southern project line.  A thirty foot wide conservation easement follows the rear of Lots 

20 through 28 and the side yard or Lots 13 and 14.  This conservation easement is to be 

left in it natural vegetation and is assigned to the HOA.  No pools, fences, or other 

accessory structures can be placed within the 30-foot wide conservation easement. 

 

4. Western project line.  Approximately 10 acres are preserved as open space\recreation. A 

two-foot wide conservation easement is placed along the eastern property line next to 

Ustler Road. 

  

Page 55



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

Lake Access: Only owners of Lots 29 through 37 – nine lots -- are allowed access to Lake McCoy. Boat docks 

are allowed only for these nine lots.  A maximum 15 foot wide path can be cleared across 

wetlands to reach the lake, subject to Water Management District approval. 

 

Sidewalks: Sidewalks are provided on both sides of internal streets and along Sandpiper Street.  In lieu of 

constructing sidewalks along Ustler Road, developer shall pay to the City an amount to cover the  

sidewalk cost, per the rates established by the Public Services Department.  

 

The PUD Development Standards, as appearing in the PDP Master Site Plan, are provided in Exhibit “B” of the 

ordinance. 

 

Modifications to the Master Site Plan:  Any zoning or development standard not addressed within the PDP Master Site 

Plan shall follow the requirements of the R-1A zoning category.  Where any development standard conflicts between 

the PDP Master Site Plan and the Land Development Code, the PDP Master Site Plan shall preside.  Any proposed 

revision to the Master Site Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant to Section 2.02.18.N. (Master plan revision), 

LDC. 

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 

public facilities exist to support this change of zoning (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS: The recommendations are that the zoning classification of the aforementioned 

properties be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions are subject to the following provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated accessory uses or 

structures consistent with land use and development standards established for the R-1A zoning category except 

where otherwise addressed in this ordinance. 

 

B.   Master Plan requirements, as enumerated in Section 2.02.18 K. of the Apopka Land Development Code, not 

addressed herein are hereby deferred until the submittal and review of the Final Development Plan submitted in 

association with the PUD district.  

 

C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City within two 

years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Site Plan\PDP provisions will 

expire.   At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1.  Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2.  Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master Site Plan 

provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3.  Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

D. The following PUD development standards shall apply to the development of the subject property: 

 

1. Development standards are established within the PUD/PDP Master Site Plan. 

 

2. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the R-1A zoning standards will apply to 

the subject property. 
Page 56



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Change of Zoning designation is consistent with the 

City’s proposed Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future 

Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Staff has notified Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) of the proposed Zoning 

Map Amendment. Prior to submittal of a final development plan application, the applicant must obtain a school 

capacity enhancement or mitigation agreement from OCPS.  Affected Schools:  Dream Lake ES, Apopka MS, Apopka 

HS. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County before any public hearing or 

advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on August 15, 2014. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

September 9, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

September 17, 2014 – City Council (8:00 pm) – Remanded back to Planning Commission 

October 21, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

November 5, 2014 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1
st
 Reading 

November 19 2014 – City Council (8:00 pm) - 2
nd

 Reading – Denied  

January 21, 2015 – City Council (8:00 pm) – Reconsidered. 

March 4, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1
st
 Reading 

March 18, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

August 22, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 

August 29, 2014 – Public Notice 

October 3, 2014 – Public Notice 

November 7, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

February 13, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

March 6, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Change in Zoning from “County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to 
“City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) (Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at 
Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee, and the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to the Staff Recommendations and the 
applicant obtaining a School Capacity Enhancement Agreement from OCPS.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on September 9, 2014, elected to not approve (6-0) the Change in Zoning from “County” 
PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) (Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land 
Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee, and the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  
 
The City Council, at its meeting on September 17, 2014, directed staff to return the item to the Planning Commission for a “Findings 
of Fact” of their decision to not approve the Change in Zoning from “County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” Planned Unit 
Development (PUD/R-1A) (Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee, 
and the Master Site Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to the Staff Recommendations and the applicant obtaining a School 
Capacity Enhancement Agreement from OCPS.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 21, 2014, recommended:   
 

1. To deny (6-1) the Change in Zoning from “County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-
1A) (Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee based on the 
following Findings of Fact: 

Page 57



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

a. Project is not compatible with the surrounding neighborhood because: 
i. The average lot size across the street from this project and along Ustler and Tangelwilde is 1.93 acres. 
ii. The average lot size on Sir Arthur Court, Camelot Subdivision, is 1.21 acres. 
iii. The average lot size in Wekiva Landing, a spur off of Oak Pointe Estates, is 1.63 acres. 
iv. The average lot size in Oak Pointe Estates is 1.24 acres.   

 
2. To approve (7-0) the Change in Zoning from “County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” Planned Unit Development 

(PUD/R-1A) (Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee, subject 
to a minimum Lot Size of 22,000 square feet; staff’s PUD recommendations and the sidewalk along Sandpiper Street; and 
the developer’s proposed conditions, with the exception of the minimum lot size of a tri-rail fence with dense landscaping 
buffer to reach six feet in height within two years; 2,200 square foot minimum living areas; to be a gated community and all 
language in the conditions of approval to be consistent with gating; at least 500 square feet of driveway pavers per house or 
side-loaded/courtyard entry for each house, to be decided on a house-by-house basis by the builder; and installation of stop 
signs at the corner of Ustler and Sandpiper. 

 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 5, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2386 and Held it Over for 
Second Reading and Adoption on November 19, 2014. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on November 19, 2014, denied the request for change of zoning based on the Planning 
Commission’s Findings of Fact. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on January 21, 2015, reconsidered the request for Change of Zoning and elected to rehear the 
request for Change of Zoning from “County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) 
(Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee, and the Master Site 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan subject to the Staff Recommendations and the applicant obtaining a School Capacity 
Enhancement Agreement from OCPS.  
 
The City Council, at its meeting on March 6, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2386 with the Optional Master Plan 
attached hereto, and held it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on March 18, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2386. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made a part 

of the minutes of this meeting. Role of the Planning Commission is this case is advisory to the City Council.  

Page 58



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

ZONING REPORT 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-1, A-2 SF Homes 

East (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-1, RCE SF Homes 

South (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-2, RCE, R-1AAAA SF Homes 

South (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA SF Homes 

West (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) RCE-1, R-1AA SF Homes 

West (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-2 SF Homes 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY:  The properties are located south of West Lester Road and east of Vick Road. 
 
R-1A DISTRICT  
REQUIREMENTS*:  Minimum Site Area:  10,000 sq. ft. (Sandpiper PUD- 12,800 sq. ft.) 
     Minimum Lot Width:  85 ft. (Sandpiper PUD- 75 ft.) 
     Front Setback:   25 ft. 
     Side Setback:   10 ft.        
     Rear Setback:   20 ft. 
     Corner Setback:  25 ft. 
     Minimum Living Area: 1,600 sq. ft. (Sandpiper PUD- 2,200 sq. ft.) 
 
 * PUD development standards set forth in Exhibit “F” may differ from these 

typical R-1A standards.  Where such standards differ, the PUD standards shall 
preside.  Where the PUD does not specifically address a development or zoning 
standard, the R-1A zoning standards and Land Development Code shall preside. 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS:   Sandpiper Proposed PUD requirements:   
 

a. 30-foot wide buffer easement along the south property line as set forth in 
the Master Plan. Easement dedicated to the HOA. 

 
b. 10-foot wide buffer tract with six-foot high hedge (within 2 years from 

planting) that creates a near-opaque screen, canopy trees, and a tri-rail 
fence with masonry or brick posts. 

  
ALLOWABLE USES:    Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses in 

accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting infrastructure and public 
facilities of less than five acres as defined in this code and in accordance with 
section 2.02.01, LDC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 59



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee 
58.23 +/- Total Acres; 48.4 Developable Acres 

Existing Zoning Maximum Allowable Development: 49 Dwelling Units 
Proposed Zoning Maximum Allowable Development: up to 49 Dwelling Units 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” PD (ZIP) 

To: “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) 
   Parcel ID #s: 02-21-28-0000-00-106 02-21-28-0000-00-131 
      03-21-28-0000-00-015 03-21-28-0000-00-022 
      03-21-28-0000-00-023 03-21-28-0000-00-046 
      03-21-28-0000-00-047 03-21-28-0000-00-072 
      03-21-28-0000-00-073 03-21-28-0000-00-119 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 
 

  

Subject Property 

Page 60



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

  

Subject Property 

Page 61



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

Page 62



ORDINANCE NO. 2386 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE ZONING 

FROM “COUNTY” PD TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-1A) 

FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF SANDPIPER 

STREET, WEST OF NORTH THOMPSON ROAD, EAST OF USTLER ROAD, 

COMPRISING 58.23 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY FLORIDA LAND 

TRUST #111 - ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 

public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 

Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) zoning has been found to be 

consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 

follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned 

Unit Development (PUD/R-1A), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 

Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions:  

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated accessory 

uses or structures consistent with land use and development standards established for the R-1A 

zoning category except where otherwise addressed in this ordinance. 

 

B.   Master Plan requirements, as enumerated in Section 2.02.18 K. of the Apopka Land Development 

Code, not addressed herein are hereby deferred until the submittal and review of the Final 

Development Plan submitted in association with the PUD district.  

 

C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within two years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Site 

Plan\PDP provisions will expire.   At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1.  Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2.  Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new Master 

Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3.  Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

D. The following PUD development standards shall apply to the development of the subject property: 

 

1. Development standards are established within the PUD/PDP Master Site Plan. 

 

2. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the R-1A zoning standards 

will apply to the subject property. Page 63



ORDINANCE NO. 2386 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the City 

of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) as defined in the Apopka Land 

Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

 

The Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 South, Range 

28 East, Orange County, Florida. 

 

The West 275.0 feet of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 2, 

Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, less the North 30 feet thereof. 

 

The West ½ of the North ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 

South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, LESS, the North 330 feet of the East 200 feet of 

the West 220 feet thereof, AND LESS the North 30 feet thereof. 

 

That part of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 2, Township 21 South, Range 28 

East, Orange County, Florida, beginning at a point South 00 degrees 02 minutes 00 seconds 

West, 30.0 feet and North 89 degrees 35 minutes 59 seconds East, 550.0 feet from the Northwest 

corner of said Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼, run North 89 degrees 35 minutes 59 seconds 

East, 108.90 feet along the South line of Sandpiper Road; thence run South 00 degrees 01 

minutes 08 seconds West, 312.00 feet; thence run North 89 degrees 35 minutes 59 seconds East, 

193.00 feet; thence run South 00 degrees 03 minutes 49 seconds West, 320.19 feet; thence run 

South 89 degrees 35 minutes 00 seconds West, 301.81 feet; thence run North 00 degrees 02 

minutes 00 seconds East, 632.27 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

ALSO: The East 275.0 feet of the West 550.00 feet of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of 

the Northwest ¼ of Section 2, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, less 

the North 30 feet thereof for Sandpiper Road. 

 

The Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 South, Range 

28 East, Orange County, Florida; less the North 30 feet thereof. 

 
The North 330.00 feet of the West 220.00 feet of the West ½ of the North ½ of the Southeast ¼ 
of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, 
LESS the North 30.00 feet thereof, AND LESS the West 20.00 feet thereof. 
 

The West 145 feet of North 643 Feet of the West ½ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of 

Section 3-21-28 (Less R/W on North & West)  

 

Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-00-106; 02-21-28-0000-00-131; 03-21-28-0000-00-015; 03-21-

28-0000-00-022; 03-21-28-0000-00-023; 03-21-28-0000-00-046; 03-21-28-0000-00-047; 03-21-

28-0000-00-072; 03-21-28-0000-00-073; and 03-21-28-0000-00-119 

Combined Acreage 57.7 +/- Acres 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 Page 64



ORDINANCE NO. 2386 

PAGE 3 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to include 

said designation. 

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of 

any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                       
 
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 13, 2015 
    March 6, 2015 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
March 4, 2015 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     March 18, 2015 

Page 65



 

  

Page 66



 

Page 67



1 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

                     SANDPIPER MASTER SITE PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

 

A.  Design Standards 

1. LOT SETBACKS (minimum): 

  Front-     25’ 

  Side -      10' 

      Lots 13, 14     40’ (southern lot line only) 

      Lots 5, 6, 18, 19   0’ adjacent to the gas line easement 

Corner Lots -      25' 

  Rear -     

      Lots 1-19, 29-37; 39-40, 43-49 20’ 

      Lots 20-28, 41-42   50'  

      Lot 38    30’ 

 L. McCoy NHWE-    50' 

     Accessory Structures (pools, screen rooms, etc.): 

 Lots 38-42   20’  

 Other Lots   per city code           

Garage Setbacks 

  Front entry:       30’ 

  Side entry:    25’ 

 (Note: other setback standards may apply below.) 

2.   The minimum lot width for lots 6 through 11 and 20 through 28 will be 110 feet at the building 

setback line (“BSL”). The minimum lot width for all other lots will be 85 feet at the BSL.  The 

minimum lot depth will be 140 feet.  

3. Maximum Building Height:   35' 

4. Maximum number of Stories: Two 

5. Minimum Lot Area:   11,500 sq. ft; 10,000 sq. ft. for lots 29 to 37 (area outside SJRWMD 

wetland line and its designated upland buffer.) 

6. Minimum Living Area;  2,200 sq. ft. under heat and air. 

7. Each house to have a two car garage (minimum). 

8. Internal streets shall be privately owned by the Homeowners Association and an electronic gate 

system provided at the community entrance. 

9.  After the adoption hearing, the Master Plan shall be revised to be consistent with the adopted 

development standards herein, and all lots and tracts re-numbered accordingly, subject to 

Development Review Committee acceptance. 

10. Any modification to the PUD Master Plan shall be reviewed according to Section 2.02.18.N, Land 

Development Code. 

11. Lot 11 will be a minimum of 120 feet wide with a 20-foot wide eastern side yard setback. 

12. On Lots 13 and 14, if courtyard/side loaded garage entries are constructed, the garage doors must 

face to the north.   

13. On Lot 16, the eastern building line and setback to align with the front building line and setback of 

Lot 15. 

 

 

 

Page 68



2 
 

 

B.  Buildings and Accessory Structures 

1.   Home design shall meet the intent of the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

2. Pools, sheds, buildings, gazebos, fences and other accessory structures are prohibited in the side 

yard setbacks and within the 30 foot conservation easement at the rear of lots 20 to 28. 

3. Existing structures will be removed prior to platting. 

4. At least 500 sq. ft. of driveway pavers will be installed per house or a side-loaded / courtyard entry 

will be provided for each house, to be decided on a house-by-house basis determined by the 

builder.   

 

C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 

1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to city 

standards. 

2. An oversize agreement is necessary to install 12" diameter force main along sandpiper road. 

3. Storm water management system shall be designed to comply with the requirements of the City of 

Apopka and St. Johns River Water Management District. 

4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with final development plans 

5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

city standards.  

5.  Utility easements to be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 

6. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the home owners association unless otherwise accepted by 

the City of Apopka. 

7. All storm water and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the final engineering plans. 

8. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 

9. A signage plan will be provided with the final development plan submittal. 

10. Entrance gate shall conform to city codes.  Entrance gate to be equipped with emergency access 

system through an opti-com type visual gate activation and yelp siren. There must also be a 

keypad with an emergency access code. 

11. A blanket ingress/egress easement will be granted for access to the city over Road A and B. 

12. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 

13. Street names will be provided with the final development plans 

14. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 

15. All/any overhead utility lines must be placed underground, coordination with City’s Public 

Service Dept. 

16. The internal street right-of-way is to be private with an entrance gate;  

17.      A five (5) foot wide sidewalks to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment 

may be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

18. In lieu of installation of sidewalk along Ustler Road, the owner may pay into the city sidewalk 

fund at the rate of $3.50/sf for 4" thick sidewalk and $4.25 for 6" sidewalk. 

19. A five-foot wide sidewalk shall be constructed along Sandpiper Road from Ustler Road to the 

northeast corner of the project boundary. 

 

 

 

Page 69



3 
 

 

 

D.  Recreation, Open Space, Lake Access 

1. The active park area shall be a minimum of 15,000 sq.ft. within Tract “D”.  A park site plan and 

recreation equipment for Tract “D” shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Design of 

the park shall comply with the Land Development Code. 

2.   Only the nine lot owners (Lots 29-37) who will have lots backing up to Lake McCoy will have 

access to the lake and be able to build private docks to access said lake. All nine lot owners will be 

required to join the Lake McCoy taxing district. No other docks or recreation will be allowed to 

have access to Lake McCoy from this development.  Dock details will be evaluated with the 

building permit and is to include language allowing a 15-foot wide access path across wetlands to 

the lake for each lot. 

3. A Park site plan for Tract “N” will be provided with final development plans. Tract “N” shall be a 

passive park owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

       

E.  Buffers and  Landscaping 

1. A 30 foot wide conservation easement will be provided on the back of Lots along the southern 

property line, except against lake, wetland, retention, or gas easement. Easement shall be 

dedicated to the HOA.  (The 30-foot conservation easement is not a required SJRWMD easement.) 

No building, fence, gazebo, swimming pool, or accessory structure shall be placed within the 

thirty-foot conservation easement.  The buffer shall remain as natural vegetated buffer. Trees that 

that are removed shall be replaced.  Any removal of trees or vegetation within the conservation 

easement must be approved by the HOA and the City of Apopka.    Easement boundary markers 

will be placed at the interior of the easement line along the side lot line for all lots (Lots 20 to 28, 

13 and 14 abutting the 30-foot conservation easement. 

2. A 20 foot wide conservation easement will be provided on the western property line (abutting 

Ustler Road). The buffer shall be dedicated to the HOA and shall remain as natural vegetated 

buffer unless determined otherwise by the City. Trees that are removed shall be replaced by the 

HOA.  Any removal of trees or vegetation within the conservation easement must be approved by 

the HOA and the City of Apopka.  The 20 foot wide conservation easement may be encroached 

upon or removed by the City, in part or whole, at its discretion to make improvements to roads, 

utility mains or lines, and\or stormwater systems, including expansion of the Ustler Road right-of-

way.  Such easement shall not prevent the City or a utility provider from implementing necessary 

public services. 

3.  A ten (10) foot wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided on the northern property line, 

except against lake, wetland, retention, or gas easement.  This tract shall be dedicated to and 

maintained by the HOA.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design 

appearing in Exhibit “B.1”.   A tri-trail fence that is supported by a brick or stone post shall extend 

from the northeast project boundary westward to the northwest corner of Lot 38. 

4.  Entrance feature and community sign will be provided with final development plans.   

5. Final landscape plans for the buffer area along Sandpiper Street will be provided with the final 

development plans. 

6. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of two new trees shall be planted per lot, except that Lots 4 

to 11, 13 and 14 shall have a minimum of three new trees planted per lot, regardless of the number 

of trees saved on the any lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of 2.5 inches DBH at the time of 

planting and shall count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

a. On Lots 4 to 11, at least two of the three new trees shall be planted in the rear yard. 

b. On Lots 13 and 14, at least two of the three new trees shall be planted on the south side yard.  

c. On Lots 20 through 28, at least one of the two new trees shall be planted in the rear yard 

Page 70



4 
 

7.   A viburnum hedge will be planted south of the cul-de-sac adjacent to Lots 13 and 14 near the edge 

of the conservation area.  The hedge shall be planted in a 100-foot wide by 5-foot deep landscape 

easement to be maintained by the HOA.  The length of the hedge shall equal the width of the cul-

de-sac, and the height of the hedge shall be at least six feet within two years of planting.   

8.  Tree Protection Plan.   

a. Any individual residential lot shall not be cleared until a building permit is approved.  Existing 

trees (6” or greater DBH) shall appear on the plot plan (i.e. foundation survey).  The plot plan 

shall identify the location of the driveway.  Location of a house and its driveway shall be 

oriented with a reasonable consideration for the protection of existing trees, particularly trees 

with a DBH of 24 inches or greater.  The Community Development Director shall determine if 

a reasonable consideration has been made and shall take final action on the plot plan, and may 

deny or accept the plot plan; provided, however, the Community Development Director’s 

determination shall only consider the location of the house and other impervious surfaces on 

the lot.  Applicant can appeal the Community Development Director’s decision to the Planning 

Commission. 

b. The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to prevent harm to any 

trees or encroachment into protected natural areas, including but not limited to tree barricades, 

silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the city engineer.   

c. Clearing shall be allowed for road ROW, retention ponds, community recreation area at the 

end of the western cul-de-sac, utility and stormwater infrastructure, off-site improvements, and 

areas needed to make necessary grading transitions for a safe work environment.   

 

F.  Maintenance and Plat  

1.   Homeowners association will maintain all common areas, fences\walls within common areas, and 

road tracts. 

2. The final development plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 

3. Lots 5, 6, 18, and 19 have access to the gas easement surface area as allowed by the recorded 

easement.  Easement details will be provided with the final development plan. 

4.        The HOA shall enforce the protection of the southern conservation buffer as an undisturbed natural 

buffer area.  If the HOA fails to enforce the buffer area, the City may require either the property 

owner or the HOA to take action to remedy any encroachment into the buffer area.   

 

G.  Wetlands and Environmental 

1. All acreage regarding developable and conservation areas (wetlands and buffers) are considered 

approximate until finalized during a review by the St. Johns River Water Management District and 

the City of Apopka. The SJRWMD concurrency will be provided at final plan review.   

2. The jurisdictional wetland areas and required upland buffers are to be placed in a conservation 

easement. 

3. Any development in a special flood hazard area will require the finish floor elevation to be 20-

inches above the 100 yr. Flood elevation, minimum. 

4. An erosion protection plan will be submitted with final development plans.  

5. The habitat inventory and management report shall be provided to the city at the final 

development plan stage.  

6. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall be in conformance with Article V of the 

City of Apopka Land Development Code unless as otherwise described herein.   

7.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 

building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent 

practical.  Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 

Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

Page 71



5 
 

8.  In order to save existing trees stem walls/retaining walls may be utilized on individual lots.   

9.  The 25 foot wide (average)/15 foot wide minimum wetland buffer/conservation easement within 

Lots 29 to 37, Tract A and Tract C is to be dedicated to the SJRWMD.  Lot owners may not clear 

any vegetation within the conservation easement on their lot except to accommodate a maximum 

15 foot wide path to reach the water’s edge.  

 

H.  Development Condition Continuity.   The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the 

PUD Master Plan and the Final Development Plan. 

Page 72



 

Page 73



Page 74



Page 75 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2405 – FIRST READING – CHANGE OF ZONING - FLORIDA 

LAND TRUST #111 – ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC – for property located south of 

Sandpiper Street, west of North Thompson Road, and east of Ustler Road, from 

“County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” R-1AAA. (Parcel ID #s: 02-21-28-0000-00-

106, 02-21-28-0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-

0000-00-023, 03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-072, 

03-21-28-0000-00-073, AND 03-21-28-0000-00-119) [This item was continued at the 

March 4, 2015 City Council meeting until the March 18, 2015 meeting.] 

  

Page 75



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 18, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Supporting LDC information 
           Legal Opinion  
           E-mail Alex Toledo 
           Ordinance No. 2405 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO.  2405 – CHANGE OF ZONING - FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111 – 
ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC – FROM “COUNTY” PD TO “CITY” R-1AAA 

     
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2405 – CHANGE OF ZONING - 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111 – ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC - FROM 
“COUNTY” PD (ZIP) (RESIDENTIAL) TO “CITY” R-1AAA; PARCEL ID 
NUMBERS: 02-21-28-0000-00-106, 02-21-28-0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-
015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-0000-00-023, 03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-
21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-072, 03-21-28-0000-00-073, AND 03-21-
28-0000-00-119; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 
ADOPTION.  

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee 
 
LOCATION: South of Sandpiper Street, west of North Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Abandoned Single Family Homes 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” PD (“City” ZIP)  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential Subdivision  
 
FUTURE LAND USE  
DESIGNATION: “City” Residential Very Low Suburban (0- 2.0 du/ac) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   Combined total Acreage: 58.23 +/- Total Acres (48.4 developable acres) 
     
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:                  EXISTING: up to 97 Dwelling Units (max. 2 un\ac x 49.4) 
    PROPOSED: up to 97 Dwelling Units (max. 2 un\ac x 49.4) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.     Public Ser. Dir.  

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief  

 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2014\Florida Land Trust #111\1 Florida Land Trust #111 ZON CC 03-18-15 1st Rd Page 76



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on September 17, 2008, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2068; and on September 18, 2013, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 2326. 

 

Pursuant to Section 2.01.02, Table II-1 of the LDC, the R-1AAA zoning category is a permissible zoning district 

within the Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation.  Based on zoning currently assigned 

to properties in the general area surrounding the subject property, the R-1AAA zoning category is compatible 

with the zoning categories assigned to the general area.  Based on a review of zoning categories assigned to 

other properties within the general area surrounding the subject property as well as to properties within the City 

as a whole, the R-1AAA zoning category and zoning categories allowing a smaller lot size have been allowed 

adjacent to or within the area of properties allowing a higher residential density or larger minimum lot size. 

 

As the zoning application requests an R-1AAA district, zoning or development conditions or restrictions cannot 

be placed on the subject property unless otherwise accepted by the applicant.   Regarding this matter, a legal 

opinion has been prepared by the city attorney’s office and is provided with the attached information. 

 

Selection of a zoning category is made according to the allowed zoning district hierarchy set forth within 

Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code.  This zoning hierarch is summarized within Table II-1 and Section 

2.02.02 of the LDC.  The zoning category of R-1AAA requires a minimum lot size of 16,000 sq. ft. and a 

minimum lot width of 120 feet.  As shown within Table II-1 the next category within the zoning hierarchy that 

requires a larger lot size is RCE-1, which requires a minimum lot size of one acre (43,560 sq. ft.) with a 

minimum lot width of 130 feet.  No other zoning category exists that addresses a lot size option greater than 

16,000 sq. ft. and less than one acre.  For example, a zoning category does not exist that requires a minimum lot 

size of half an acre (21,780 sq. ft.).  A subdivision plan or Master plan is not required to be submitted with a 

standard zoning application. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate transportation public facilities 

capacities exist to support this zoning change (see attached Zoning Report) subject to the extension of water and 

sewer lines to the property.  Prior to developing the subject property pursuant to the R-1AAA zoning category, 

water and sewer lines must be extended to the subject property.  As the City does not currently plan to extend 

such infrastructure to the property within its five-year capital improvement program, the developer will be 

required to facilitate such extension. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed Change of Zoning designation is consistent with 
the City’s proposed Future Land Use designation of Residential Very Low Suburban.  Site development cannot 
exceed the densities allowed by the Future Land Use policies and must occur consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan, Land Development Code, and Development Design Guidelines.  Per Section 2.01.02, 
Table II-1 of the LDC, the R-1AAA zoning category is a permissible zoning district within the Residential Very 
Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: 
Staff has notified Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) of the proposed Zoning Map Amendment. Prior to 
submittal of a final development plan application, the applicant must obtain a school capacity enhancement or 
mitigation agreement from OCPS.  Affected Schools:  Dream Lake ES, Apopka MS, Apopka HS. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County before any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly 

notified Orange County on December 19, 2014. 
Page 77



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
January 13, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
February 4, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 1

st
 Reading 

February 18, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2
nd

 Reading - Reconsideration 
March 4, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 1

st
 Reading – Continued  

March 18, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 1
st
 Reading 

April 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2
nd

 Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
December 26, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 
February 6, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
February 13, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 20, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Change in Zoning from “County” PD 
(ZIP) (Residential) to “City” R-1AAA (0-2 un/ac) (Residential) for the property owned by Florida Land Trust 
#111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee and the applicant obtaining a School Capacity Enhancement 
Agreement from OCPS.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 13, 2015, recommended denial (6-0) of the Change in 
Zoning from “County” PD (ZIP) (Residential) to “City” R-1AAA (0-2 un/ac) (Residential) for the property 
owned by Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee subject to the applicant obtaining a 
School Capacity Enhancement Agreement from OCPS.  
 
The City Council, at its meeting on February 4, 2015, elected to continue the First Reading and instructed staff 
to prepare a presentation on the Sandpiper project for the February 18, 2015 meeting on the three zoning options; 
PUD, RCE and R-1AAA zoning, providing pros and cons of each. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on March 4, 2015, elected to continue the First Reading and instructed staff to 
prepare a presentation on the Sandpiper project for the March 18, 2015 meeting on the three zoning options; PUD, 
RCE and R-1AAA zoning, providing pros and cons of each. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2405 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on April 1, 
2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting.  
  

Page 78



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-1, A-2 SF Homes 

East (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-1, RCE SF Homes 

South (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-2, RCE, R-1AAAA SF Homes 

South (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) R-1AAA SF Homes 

West (City) Res. Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) RCE-1, R-1AAAA SF Homes 

West (County) Res. Low Density (4 du/ac) A-2 SF Homes 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY:  Pursuant to Section 2.01.02, Table II-1 of the LDC, the R-1AAA zoning 

category is a permissible zoning district within the Residential Very Low 
Suburban Future Land Use Designation.  Based on zoning currently 
assigned to properties in the general area surrounding the subject property, 
the R-1AAA zoning category is compatible with the zoning categories 
assigned to the general surrounding area.   

 
Based on a review of zoning categories assigned to other properties within 
the general area surrounding the subject property as well as to properties 
within the City as a whole, the R-1AAA zoning category and zoning 
categories allowing a smaller lot size have been allowed adjacent to or 
within the area of properties allowing a higher residential density or larger 
minimum lot size.  For example, the Wekiva Preserve residential 
community is assigned a zoning category of R-1AA (min. 12,500 sq. ft. 
lot) and abuts property assigned County A-1 or A-2), and the southern 
neighborhoods of the Wekiva Glen residential community is assigned a 
zoning has R-1A (min. 10,000 sq. ft. lot) next to properties assigned the 
RCE-1 zoning district (min. lot size of one acre). 

 
 The entire City is designated a Transportation Concurrency Exception 

Area.  As such a transportation study is not required as part of a zoning 
application.  Based on a review of recent traffic counts for Sandpiper 
Street and nearby roads, adequate capacity is available on these streets to 
satisfactory accommodated vehicle trips generated by future development 
of the subject property.  

   
R-1AAA DISTRICT  
REQUIREMENTS*:  Minimum Site Area:  16,000 sq. ft.  
     Minimum Lot Width:  120 ft.  
     Front Setback:   25 ft. 
     Side Setback:   10 ft.       
     Rear Setback:   20 ft. 
     Corner Setback:  25 ft. 
     Minimum Living Area: 1,800 sq. ft.  
 
 Page 79



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS:   Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 

solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and 

shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where wrought iron is 

used, additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required. This 

will be determined by the city on a case-by-case basis.  

 

Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, stone 

or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives are 

submitted for approval.  
 
 
ALLOWABLE USES:    Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses 

in accordance with article VII of this code. Supporting infrastructure and 
public facilities of less than five acres as defined in this code and in 
accordance with section 2.02.01. Accessory structures, such as swimming 
pools and screened rooms, must be set back at least five feet from the rear 
property line. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 80



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

Applicant: Florida Land Trust #111, c/o ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC, Trustee 
From:  “County” PD (ZIP) 

To:  “City” R-1AAA Residential 
57.7 +/- Acres (48.4 developable acres) 

Maximum Allowable Development:  up to 97 dwelling units 
Proposed Minimum Lot Size: 16,000 sq. ft. 

Future Land Use Designation: Residential Very Low Suburban (0 – 2 un\ac) 
   Parcel ID #s:  02-21-28-0000-00-106 02-21-28-0000-00-131 
   03-21-28-0000-00-015 03-21-28-0000-00-022 
   03-21-28-0000-00-023 03-21-28-0000-00-046 
   03-21-28-0000-00-047 03-21-28-0000-00-072 
   03-21-28-0000-00-073 03-21-28-0000-00-119  
 

VICINITY MAP 

Subject Property 

Page 81



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

  

Subject Property 

Page 82



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

FLORIDA LAND TRUST #111, c/o ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

Page 83



ORDINANCE NO. 2405 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE ZONING 
FROM “COUNTY” PD (ZIP) (RESIDENTIAL) TO “CITY” R-1AAA (0-2 DU/AC); FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF SANDPIPER 
STREET, WEST OF NORTH THOMPSON ROAD, AND EAST OF USTLER ROAD, 
COMPRISING 58.23 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY FLORIDA LAND 
TRUST #111, C/O ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC, TRUSTEE; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 

public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 

Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed R-1AAA (Residential) zoning has been found to be consistent with the City 

of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 

follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the City 

of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1AAA (Residential), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 
 Legal Description: 
 

The Northeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 South, Range 
28 East, Orange County, Florida. 
 
The West 275.0 feet of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 2, 
Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, less the North 30 feet thereof. 
 
The West ½ of the North ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 
South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, LESS, the North 330 feet of the East 200 feet of 
the West 220 feet thereof, AND LESS the North 30 feet thereof. 
 
That part of the Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼ of Section 2, Township 21 South, Range 28 
East, Orange County, Florida, beginning at a point South 00 degrees 02 minutes 00 seconds 
West, 30.0 feet and North 89 degrees 35 minutes 59 seconds East, 550.0 feet from the Northwest 
corner of said Southwest ¼ of the Northwest ¼, run North 89 degrees 35 minutes 59 seconds 
East, 108.90 feet along the South line of Sandpiper Road; thence run South 00 degrees 01 
minutes 08 seconds West, 312.00 feet; thence run North 89 degrees 35 minutes 59 seconds East, 
193.00 feet; thence run South 00 degrees 03 minutes 49 seconds West, 320.19 feet; thence run 
South 89 degrees 35 minutes 00 seconds West, 301.81 feet; thence run North 00 degrees 02 
minutes 00 seconds East, 632.27 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
ALSO: The East 275.0 feet of the West 550.00 feet of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of 
the Northwest ¼ of Section 2, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, less 
the North 30 feet thereof for Sandpiper Road. 
 
The Northeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 South, Range 
28 East, Orange County, Florida; less the North 30 feet thereof. 
 
 Page 84



ORDINANCE NO. 2405 

PAGE 2 
 

 

The North 330.00 feet of the West 220.00 feet of the West ½ of the North ½ of the Southeast ¼ 
of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, 
LESS the North 30.00 feet thereof, AND LESS the West 20.00 feet thereof. 
 
The West 145 feet of North 643 Feet of the West ½ of the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of 
Section 3-21-28 (Less R/W on North & West)  
 
Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-00-106; 02-21-28-0000-00-131; 03-21-28-0000-00-015; 03-21-
28-0000-00-022; 03-21-28-0000-00-023; 03-21-28-0000-00-046; 03-21-28-0000-00-047; 03-21-
28-0000-00-072; 03-21-28-0000-00-073; and 03-21-28-0000-00-119 
Combined Acreage 57.7 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to include 

said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a development plan 

until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review with Orange County Public 

Schools. 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of 

any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately. 
 
 

                       
 
 

        _____________________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 13, 2015 
    March 6, 2015 
 

READ FIRST TIME:  March 4, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
March 18, 2015 

Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 1 of 2 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Shepard, Smith & Cassady, P.A. 

2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Suite 100 

Maitland, Florida 32751 

Telephone (407) 622-1772 

Facsimile (407) 622-1884 

*** 

 

To:  Cliff B. Shepard, Esq.  

From:  Andrew J. Hand  

Subject:  Imposition of Conditions on Straight Zoning Application   

Date: December 9, 2014  

 

1) When in receipt of a “straight zoning” application is it lawful for the City Council of 

the City of Apopka to impose additional conditions for zoning approval that are not 

specified within the City’s code if all criteria of the City’s zoning ordinance are met?  

 

No.  It is my opinion that imposition of additional conditions by City Council or other reviewing 

agencies for zoning approval of a straight zoning application is improper under Florida law if 

such conditions are not specified within Apopka’s code.   

 

According to the Court in City of Homestead v. Schild, 227 So.2d 540, 543 (Fla. 3d DCA 1969): 

 

“The law of Florida is committed to the doctrine of the requirement that zoning 

ordinances and their exceptions must be predicated upon legislative standards which 

can be applied to all cases, rather than to the theory of granting an administrative 

board or even a legislative body the power to arbitrarily decide each case entirely 

within the discretion of the members of the administrative board or legislative body, 

or to shift a particular parcel of property arbitrarily from one zoning classification to 

another…” 

 

Another principle of Florida law is that “a local government may not deny a development order 

based on criteria which are not specifically enumerated in its land use regulations.”  See Drexel 

v. City of Miami Beach, 64 So. 2d 317 (Fla. 1953).  See also Effie, Inc. v. City of Ocala, 438 So. 

2d 506 (Fla. 5th DCA 1983); ABC Liquors, Inc. v. City of Ocala, 366 So. 2d 146 (Fla. 1st DCA 

1979). 

 

Based on the case law above which I find to be analogous to this situation, it is my opinion that it 

would not be legal for City Council to unilaterally impose of conditions that are not specifically 

delineated within the City’s zoning code on an application for straight zoning. 

 

Page 88



Page 2 of 2 

 

Additionally, although such a situation is not implicated here, it is important to note that in the 

absence of planned development zoning situations, bilateral agreements between developers and 

municipalities to accomplish rezonings in Florida constitute “contract zoning” and are illegal.  In 

Hartnett v. Austin, 93 So. 2d 86 (Fla. 1956), Florida’s Supreme Court held that, “[a] municipality 

has no authority to enter into a private contract with a property owner for the amendment of a 

zoning ordinance subject to various covenants and restrictions in a collateral deed or agreement 

to be executed between the city and property owner.” 

 

Notwithstanding the illegality of contract zoning, Florida has evolved to permit developers to 

make concessions to a local government at a public hearing.  Self-imposed conditions proffered 

by a developer to a municipality to mitigate development impacts or to address public discontent 

associated with an application do not automatically render a local government’s decision to 

rezone void as contract zoning.
1
  However, it is important to point out that this rule appears to be 

limited to unilateral concessions offered by the developer to a municipality rather than conditions 

directly imposed on a developer by a municipality that are not specified within the municipality’s 

land development regulations. 

                                                 
1
 See Wallberg v. Metropolitan Dade County, 296 So. 2d 509 (Fla. 3d DCA 1974). 

Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2411 – FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – McCarthy McCollough, from “County” 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac), for property located at 

1505 West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003) 

  

Page 103



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 18, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2411 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO.  2411 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – 
FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH, 
1505 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/10 
AC) TO “CITY” RURAL SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC). 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2411 – COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN - SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH, 1505 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, FROM 
“COUNTY” RURAL (0-1 DU/10 AC) TO “CITY” RURAL SETTLEMENT 
(0-1 DU/5 AC). PARCEL ID NUMBER 08-20-28-0000-00-003; AND HOLD 
OVER FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION ON APRIL 1, 2015. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: McCarthy McCollough 
 
LOCATION: North of West Kelly Park Road, east of Foliage Way 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family home 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City”  AG and RCE-1 and  (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request 

is being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map designation 
from “County” A-1 to “City” AG (6.44 acres)  & “City” RCE-1 (2 acres).) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   8.44 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 1 Unit 
    PROPOSED: 2 Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\McCarthy McCollough FLU CC 03-18-15 
 

 Page 104



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 2395.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 
owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed 
as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement is compatible with the designations 
assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 8.44 acres. The property owner 
intends to use the site for a residential development. The applicant intends to split the lot, contingent upon 
future land use and rezoning approvals, and sell approximately two (2) acres of the existing subject property for 
an additional single-family residence.   Residential development of the two acres parcel will require connection 
to central water and sewer. 
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the Rural Settlement Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed AG and RCE-1 Zoning 
classifications.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The impact on the number of residential units under the proposed rezoning 
will be de minimus and, therefore, a school capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 6, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
March 18, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
April 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
February 20, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 20, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
March 27, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” 
Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property owned by McCarthy McCollough. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the change in 
Future Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property 
owned by McCarthy McCollough. 
 
Accept First Reading of Ordinance No. 2411 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on March 4, 
2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 105



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Mobile Home/Vacant Land 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (City) 

South (County) 

Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 

Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

A-1 (ZIP) 

A-1 

Vacant Land 

Mobile Home 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Manufactured home 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of 
agricultural uses and rural county estate residential.  The property lies north of West Kelly Park Road and east 
of Foliage Way.  
  

 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: No 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the Northern Area of the Joint Planning area.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basing Study Area, 

the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features present on the northeast portion of the subject property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts West Kelly Park Rd.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and 

the terrain has a 5-12 percent slope. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.s Rural 

Settlement Residential Future Land Use designation. Page 106



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 

use designation for the Property is Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 

PROPOSED (City designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 6 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  The subject site has access to Kelley Park Road, which is a 

major collector road. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  392 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka Page 107



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    210 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  420 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes           

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  12 lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  24 lbs./person/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 mil. GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 mil. GPD Page 108



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.018 AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 109



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

McCarthy McCullough 
8.44 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 2 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural (0-1/10 ac) 

To: “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County” A-1 
To: “City” AG & RCE-1 

Parcel ID #s: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

Subject 
Property 

Page 110



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 111



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 112



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

Page 113



ORDINANCE NO. 2411 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL 
(0-1 DU/10 AC) TO “CITY” RURAL SETTLEMENT (0-1 DU/5 AC),  FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 
WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, EAST OF FOLIAGE WAY, COMPRISING 
8.44 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY MCCARTHY 
MCCOLLOUGH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, 
Florida Statutes and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2409 on March 4, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 
authority set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development 
Regulation Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2409, is amended in its 
entirety to change the land use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement 
(0-1 du/5 ac), for certain real property generally located south of West Kelly Park Road, east of 
Foliage Way, Comprising 8.44 acres more or less, (Parcel No. 08-20-28-0000-00-003; as further 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as 
provided by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

Page 114



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2411 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2015. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
March 18, 2015 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
April 1, 2015 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: February 20, 2015 

      March 20, 2015 

      March 27, 2015 

Page 115



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2411 

 
McCarthy McCullough 

8.51 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 2 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Rural (0-1/10 ac) 

To: “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Parcel ID #s: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 

 

 VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

 

Page 116



Page 117 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2412 – FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – McCarthy 

McCollough, from “County” A-1 (Agriculture) to “City” AG (0-1 du/5 ac) (Agriculture) 

and RCE-1 for property located at 1505 West Kelly Park Road. (Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-

0000-00-003) 

  

Page 117



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 18, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Zoning Change Map  
           Site Survey 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Ordinance No. 2412 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO.  2412 – CHANGE OF ZONING – MCCARTHY 
MCCOLLOUGH, 1505 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, FROM “COUNTY” 
A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG (0-1 DU/AC) (AGRICULTURE) 
(6.44 AC) AND RCE-1 (RESIDENTIAL) (2.0 AC) 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2412 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH, 1505 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, FROM 
“COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) 
(6.44 AC) AND RCE-1 (RESIDENTIAL) (2.0 AC). PARCEL ID NO. 08-20-
28-0000-00-003; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 
ADOPTION ON APRIL 1, 2015. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: McCarthy McCollough  
 
LOCATION:   North of W Kelly Park Road, east of Foliage Way (1505 W Kelly Park Rd.) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 
 
PROPOSED LAND USE: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from “County” Rural to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac)). 

 
ZONING:   “County” A-1 (Agriculture) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: AG (min. lot area of five acres) and RCE-1(mi. lot area of one acre) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Existing and new single-family home 
 
TRACT SIZE:   8.44 +/- acres total 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 2 Residential Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.     Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2015\McCarthy McCollough\McCarthy McCollough – 1505 W. Kelly Park Rd – ZON – CC 03-18-15 1st Rd Page 118



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of Ordinance No. 
2395.   A survey of the proposed lot split is provided with the support information.  The smaller proposed lot abutting Kelley 
Park Road is two acres and the applicant request RCE-1 zoning for this portion of the property.  The minimum lot area for 
RCE-1 is one acre. However, a portion of the front of this parcel as well as the access portion of the parcel zoned AG will 
likely be acquired for right-of-way when Kelley Park Road is widened from 60 feet to up to 120 feet. In such case, the 
remaining portion of the RCE-1 parcel will meet the minimum lot size. 
 
The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and the subject parcel contains an 
existing.  The applicant has requested the AG zoning to assure that the property can be developed as a single-family 
residence and meet site and access requirements, and be compatible with surrounding nature of development. The zoning 
application covers approximately 8.44 acres.   The portion of the property proposed to be zoned RCE-1 is located adjacent to 
Kelley Park Road.  The property owner intends to use both parcels a single-family home but desires to retain the larger parcel 
for agriculture use.  Access to the larger rear parcel will occur through a flag-lot.   Any single family home constructed on the  
RCE-1 parcel will have to connect to central water and sewer. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this zoning 
change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed AG & RCE-1 rezoning is consistent with the proposed Future 
Land Use Designation of Rural Settlement (up to one unit per five acres, maximum density of one unit per acre) for this 
property.   Minimum lot size for property assigned the AG zoning category is 5 acres, and the minimum lot size for property 
assigned the RCE-1 zoning classification is 1 acre.   
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The impact on the number of residential units under the proposed rezoning will be de 
minimus and, therefore, a school capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public 
hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 6, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
March 18, 2015- City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
April 1, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
February 20, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 
March 20, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” AG 
(6.44 ac) and RCE-1 (2.0 ac) for the parcel owned by McCarthy McCollough located at 1505 West Kelly Park Road, subject 
to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the change in Zoning 
“County” A-1 to “City” AG (6.44 ac) and RCE-1 (2.0 ac) for the parcel owned by McCarthy McCollough located at 1505 
West Kelly Park Road, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2412 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on March 4, 2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 
a part of the minutes of this meeting. Page 119



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Manufactured Home/Vacant Land 

East (City) Agriculture (1 du/5 ac) A-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

South (City) 
South (County) 

Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

A-1 (ZIP) 
A-1 

Vacant Land 
Mobile Home 

West (County) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Manufactured home 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a major collector roadway (W 

Kelly Park Road).  The zoning application covers approximately 8.44 acres 
as follows: Parcel 1 will comprise 6.44 acres and Parcel 2 will comprise 2.00 
acres.  The property owner intends to split the property into two lots for two-
single family residences. 

COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG  and RCE-1zoning is consistent with the City’s Rural 

Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) Future Land Use category and with the character of 
the surrounding area and future proposed development.  Per Section 2.02.01, 
Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, AG & RCE-1 zoning is one of 
the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Rural Settlement Future 
Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density 
allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

AG DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,200 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 5 acres. 

Minimum Lot Width None 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 25 ft. 

 Side: 25 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 6.44-acre portion of the 
subject parcel complies with code requirements for the AG district. 
 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Uses including, but not limited to, kennels, livestock barn stables, and other similar 

uses shall be a minimum of 100 feet from all property lines. Apiaries shall be locat-
ed 200 feet from any property line. All other yard setbacks shall be a minimum of 
25 feet from the property line. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Office building and accessory buildings in conjunction with commercial 
agriculture uses for packing, shipping, and storage purposes. Commercial 
wholesale foliage plant production nursery, tenant dwellings, for year-round 
employees, on the basis of one dwelling unit for each five acres of land, provided 
such dwellings are accessory to the principal use of land. Livestock barns and 
stables, crops and animal production and the buildings and structures necessary to 
support such production, as well as kennels. Single-family dwellings, including 
mobile homes, and their customary accessory structures and uses in accordance 
with article VII of this Code. Apiaries. Page 120



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

RCE-1 DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 1 acre (43,560 sq. ft.) 

Minimum Lot Width 130 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 35 ft. 

 Rear: 30 ft. 

 Side: 15 ft. 

 Corner 35 ft. 

 

Based on the above zoning standards, the proposed split of 2 acres from the 

subject parcel complies with code requirements for the RCE-1 district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Proposed residential subdivisions shall provide a minimum six-foot high 

brick, stone or decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external road-

ways, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape 

materials shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the 

buffer wall.  The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 

solid columns.  The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall 

have a stone, brick or decorative block finish.  Where wrought iron is used, 

additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required.  This will be 

determined by the city on a case-by-case basis. 

 Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a minimum 

five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or decorative 

block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives are submitted for approv-

al. 

 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses 

in accordance with article VII of this code.  Guest/granny quarters in 

accordance with article VII of this code. 

  

Page 121



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
McCarthy McCollough 

8.44 +/- Acres 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 2 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Rural (0-1/10 ac) 

To: “City” Agriculture (0-1 du/5 ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County” A-1 
To: “City” AG (6.44 ac) & RCE-1 (2.0 ac) 

Parcel ID #: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

Subject 
Property 

Page 122



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

ZONING CHANGE MAP 
  

AG 

RCE-1 

Page 123



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

SITE SURVEY 
 

  

Page 124



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 

 

  

Page 125



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 Page 126



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 
MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 

Page 127



ORDINANCE NO. 2412 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE ZONING 
FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG (AGRICULTURE) 
(AGRICULTURE) (6.44 AC) AND RCE-1 (RESIDENTIAL) (2.0 AC) FOR CERTAIN 
REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF WEST KELLY PARK ROAD, 
EAST OF FOLIAGE WAY (1505 W KELLY PARK RD.), COMPRISING 8.44 ACRES 
MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY MCCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH; PROVIDING 
FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed AG (min. 5 acre lot)) (Agriculture) zoning has been found to be consistent 
with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the City 
of Apopka, Florida, is hereby AG (Agriculture) (6.44 ac) and RCE-1 (Residential) (2.0 ac), as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 

 

Parcel 1:  The west 181.71 feet of the east 850 feet of the Southeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of 

Section 8, Township 20 South, Range 28 East, and the north 400 feet of the west 330 feet of the 

east 1180 feet of the Southeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 8, Township 20 South, Range 28 

East, Orange County, Florida.  LESS the east 160.00 feet of the south 575.00 feet of the west 

181.71 feet of the east 850.00 feet of the Southeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 8, Township 

20 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida. 

6.44 +/- acres (AG) 

 

Parcel 2:  The east 160.00 feet of the south 575.00 feet of the west 181.71 feet of the east 850.00 

feet of the Southeast ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of Section 8, Township 20 South, Range 28 East, 

Orange County, Florida. 

2.00 +/- acres (RCE-1) 
 

Parcel ID # 08-20-28-0000-00-003 
Combined 8.44 acres +/- 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to include 

said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a development plan 

until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review with Orange County Public 

Schools. 

 

 Page 128



ORDINANCE NO. 2412 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of 

any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2411. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

        ________________________________________ 
        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  February 20, 2015 
     March 20, 2015 

READ FIRST TIME:  March 18, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
April 1, 2015 

Page 129



Page 130 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-07 - Providing that the concessions at the Art & Foliage 

Festival will be handled by local community, civic, and religious organizations, that no 

peddler's licenses will be issued during the Festival, and that no animals, leashed or 

unleashed, will be allowed in Kit Land Nelson Park during the Festival, except in 

compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

  

Page 130



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

 _   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March 18, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        Administration 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    ___________________ 

  X   OTHER:  Resolution 

  
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2015-07 PROVIDING THAT THE CONSESSIONS AT THE 

ART & FOLIAGE FESTIVAL WILL BE HANDLED LARGELY BY LOCAL 

COMMUNITY, CIVIC AND RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS, THAT NO 

PEDDLER’S LICENSES WILL BE ISSUED DURING THE FESTIVAL, AND 

THAT NO ANIMALS, LEASHED OR UNLEASHED, WILL BE ALLOWED IN 

KIT LAND NELSON PARK DURING THE FESTIVAL, EXCEPT IN 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). 

 

 

Request: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2015-07 

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Because the Apopka Art & Foliage Festival is a community sponsored event, the proceeds of which 

ultimately benefit the community of Apopka, for the past 54 years, the vending of food and drinks at the 

Festival has been largely the province of the local community, civic and religious organizations.  

Resolution No. 2015-07 includes provisions to continue this tradition.  Additionally, Resolution No. 

2015-07 provides that no animals, leashed or unleashed, other than those in compliance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), shall be allowed in the park during the Festival. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2015-07     

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director (2) 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator Irby    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 131



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-07 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, PROVIDING THAT THE 

CONCESSIONS AT THE ART & FOLIAGE FESTIVAL 

WILL BE HANDLED LARGELY BY LOCAL COMMUNITY, 

CIVIC AND RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS, THAT NO 

PEDDLER LICENSES WILL BE ISSUED DURING THE 

FESTIVAL, AND THAT NO ANIMALS, LEASHED OR 

UNLEASHED, WILL BE ALLOWED IN KIT LAND 

NELSON PARK DURING THE FESTIVAL, EXCEPT IN 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH 

DISABILITIES ACT (ADA). 

 

WHEREAS, for the past 54 years, the annual Apopka Art & Foliage Festival has played 

an important role in the identity and character of the community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Apopka Art & Foliage Festival is a community sponsored event, the 

proceeds of which ultimately benefit the community of Apopka; and 

 

WHEREAS, this annual event, sponsored by the Apopka Woman's Club, enhances our 

community through the artists and visitors it attracts; and 

 

WHEREAS, since its inception, the vending of food and drinks at the Festival has been 

largely the province of the local community civic and religious organizations; and 

 

WHEREAS, the profits from this vending are returned to our community through the 

projects of the various civic and religious organizations; and 

 

WHEREAS, independent street vendors detract from the character and concept of the 

annual Art & Foliage Festival and, further, are difficult to control as to quality and price; and 

 

WHEREAS, animals, leashed or unleashed, can spoil the festival atmosphere when so 

many people are gathered in close proximity, as they are at the Art & Foliage Festival. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, as follows: 

 

1. That the City of Apopka will issue no peddler licenses for the vending of food items, 

drinks, or merchandise for the period of Saturday, April 25
th

 and Sunday, April 26th, 

2015, due to the scheduling of the 2015 Apopka Art & Foliage Festival. 

 

2. That no animals, leashed or unleashed, other than those required by the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (ADA) shall be allowed in the park during the Festival, and anyone 

bringing an animal into Kit Land Nelson Park may be cited by the Apopka Police 

Department. 

Page 132



RESOLUTON NO. 2013-03 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

18th day of March, 2015. 

 

 

 

 

        CITY OF APOPKA,  FLORIDA                             
 

 

 

______________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 133



Page 134 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Rock Springs Estates, owned by Rock 

Springs Estates; applicant is Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E.; engineering firm is 

Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E., located south of 

West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. (Parcel ID Nos. 3-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-

0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003) 

  

Page 134



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

     X     PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  March 18, 2015 

             SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM: Community Development 

             PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

      X    OTHER:  Preliminary Dev. Plan      Site Plan 

           Landscape Plans 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES, 

LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD 

 

Request: APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES, LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST LESTER 

ROAD, EAST OF VICK ROAD; AND ISSUE THE PRELIMINARY 

DEVELOPMENT ORDER. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 

 
OWNER:   Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
 
APPLICANT:   Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER: Donald W. McIntosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road. 
 
EXISTING USE:  One (1) single family residence/vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (Max. 3.5 du/ac) (Residential) 
 
ZONING:   R-1 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-family Residential Subdivision (60 Lots; min. 8,000 sq. ft. lot area) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   25.84 +/- acres 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION:      
 
Mayor Kilsheimer  Finance Director  Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)           HR Director         City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby           IT Director         Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director           Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Subdivision\Rock Springs Estates\1 Rock Springs Estates PDP – CC 03-18-15 

 Page 135



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE # 2 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Res. Low Suburban (0 -3.5 du/ac) R-1/ZIP Vacant Land/SFR 

East (City) Res. Low R-2 SFR 

South (County) Low Density Res. (Max. 4 du/ac) A-2 World of Life Church of Apopka 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Wekiva Crest Subdivision 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5.0 du/ac) R-3 Cambridge Commons Subdivision 

 
Project Use:  The Rock Springs Estates Preliminary Development Plan proposes the development of 60 single 
family residential lots and a 0.42 acre park.  The minimum typical lot width is 75 feet with a minimum lot size 
of 8,000 square feet.  The proposed minimum living area for the subdivision is 1,500 square feet as set forth in 
Chapter 2 of the Land Development Code.      
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 10’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 
Access:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via full access from West Lester Road.  A second road 
connection is proposed at the southeast corner of the project.  Extension of this second road will occur at the 
time the abutting eastern parcel is developed for residential use.  A multi-use trail currently runs along the south 
side of Lester Road.  The landscape buffer tract along Lester Road has taken into consideration the presence of 
this multi-use trail. 
 
Stormwater: The two (2) retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements. 
 
Recreation: The developer is providing a 0.42 acre (18,200 sq. ft.) tot lot and recreation area.  At the time of the 
final development plan application, details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be 
submitted for the City’s review. The park will be owned and maintained by the homeowners association.   
 
Buffer/Tree Program:  Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development.  The City’s Land 
Development Code and Tree Bank policy authorize the City Council to require the applicant to make a 
contribution to the City’s Tree Bank to mitigate the remaining tree inches for the residential section. The 
Applicant has committed to pay $10.00 per deficient tree inch (totaling $580.00) into the Tree Bank prior to 
issuance of the initial Arbor/Clearing permit. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 
Total inches on-site:  1,042 
Total number of specimen trees: 8 
Total inches removed:  602 
Total inches retained: 440 
Total inches replaced:  544 
Total Inches (Post Development): 984 Page 136



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE # 3 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency 

mitigation agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this 

agreement. 

 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 
rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 
on adjacent parcels.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 
March 18, 2015 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES 
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the ROCK 
SPRINGS ESTATES PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN, subject to the findings of the staff report. 
 
Approve the Preliminary Development Plan for Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision, and issue the Preliminary 
Development Order. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 137



CITY COUNCIL - MARCH 18, 2015 

ROCK SPRINGS ESTATES – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE # 4 
 

Application:  Rock Springs Estate Subdivision Preliminary Development Plan 
Owner:  Rock Springs Estates, LLC  
Applicant:  Pulte Group, c/o Doug Hoffman, P.E. 
Project Eng.:  Donald W. Mcintosh Associates, Inc., c/o John T. Townsend, P.E. 
Parcel ID Nos:    33-20-28-0000-00-015, 33-20-28-0000-00-118, 33-20-28-0000-00-003 
Total Acres:  25.84 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 

Subject 

Property 

Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



  

Page 146



 

 

  

Page 147



 

 

  

Page 148



 

 

Page 149



Page 150 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT – Ponkan Reserve North, owned by Clyde Marie 

Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton; engineer is June Engineering Consultants, Inc., c/o 

Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn; and the property is located at 301 Ponkan Road.  

(Parcel ID Nos. 21-20-28-0000-00-003; 21-20-28-0000-00-004; 28-20-28-0000-00-003; 

28-20-28-0000-00-004) 

  

Page 150



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

   

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      MEETING OF: March 18, 2015 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map  

  X  OTHER: Final Dev. Plan/Plat       Final Dev. Plan/Plat 

           Landscape Plan 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PROJECT:   FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT - PONKAN RESERVE NORTH 

       

Request:   APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT FOR 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

ORDER 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    Clyde Marie Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER:  June Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
     c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn 
 
LOCATION:   301 Ponkan Road 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 21-20-28-0000-00-003, 21-20-28-0000-00-004; 28-20-28-0000-00-003 & 

28-20-28-0000-00-004  

 
FUTURE LAND USE:   Mixed Use (max. 2 du/ac per Policy 3.5, Future Land Use Element) 
 
ZONING:    Mixed Use CC (max. 2 du/ac per Policy 3.5, Future Land Use Element) 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single Family Home, Manufacture Home and Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE:   Single Family Residential Subdivision (51) Lots 
     Min. Lot Size: 12,500 sq. ft.  Min. Lot Width: 95 ft. 
                Min. Living Area (house): 2,500 sq. ft. 
 
TRACT SIZE:    25.5 +/- Acres  
 
DENSITY:    Existing: 2 units per gross acre 
     Proposed: 2 units per gross acre 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Director  
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief  
Community Dev. Dir.                Police Chief 
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\Ponkan Reserve North\1 Ponkan Reserve North FDP CC 03-18-15 Page 151



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Estates (0-1 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant Land 

East (City) Office PO/I Duke Energy Regional Center 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AA Vacant Land/Ponkan Reserve South 

West (City) Residential Estates (0-1 du/ac) PUD Rock Springs Ridge Subdivision 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

Project Use:  The Ponkan Reserve North Final Development Plan proposes the development of 51 single family 

residential lots and a 0.57 acre park.  The park will serve this residential community and will be owned and 

maintained by the homeowners association.  The Final Development Plan is consistent with the Preliminary 

Development Plan approved by City Council on October 16, 2013. 

 

The minimum typical lot width is 95 feet with a minimum lot size of 12,500 square feet.  The proposed 

minimum living area for the subdivision is 2,500 square feet as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Land Development 

Code.     The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback Min. Standard 

Front 30’ 

Side 10’ 

Rear 35’ 

Corner 25’ 

 

Access:    Ingress/egress for the development will be via Ponkan Road. A Transportation Impact Study has been 

submitted and reviewed by the City.  No substandard issues were identified by the report.  A twenty-foot wide 

tract of land (Tract “G”) has been reserved for future road right-of-way to allow for an expansion of Ponkan 

Road. 

 

Stormwater:  The two (2) retention ponds have been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 

requirements. 

 

Recreation: The developer is providing a 0.57 acre (25,000 sq. ft.) active and passive recreation area.  

Recreation facilities and equipment will be proposed with the Final Development Plan application.  

 

Environmental: A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of this study, 

The developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior to 

commencing any site construction activity regarding protection and relocation of any identified protected 

species. 

 

Building Architecture:  Exterior elevations of all proposed homes must be reviewed by the Community 

Development Department prior to issuance of a building permit.  Exterior home elevations must meet the intent 

of the City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

 Page 152



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 3 

 

 

Section 2.20.B.29., Land Development Code, establishes that new development must meet residential garage 

design standards that are applicable to the mixed use zoning district.  This standard requires single-family 

residential development with lots 75 feet or greater to provide a mixture of garage types; and that no more that 

50 percent of the lots shall be of a single garage type.  Garage types include front-entry, recessed by ten feet, 

side-entry, detached, rear-entry.  At the time building elevations are provided, the home builder must 

demonstrate that a diversity of garage types will be provided consistent with Section 2.20.B.29. 

 

Buffer and Landscaping:  A ten-foot landscape tract (Tract “B” and “C”) with a six-foot high brick wall is 

provided along Ponkan Road with a subdivision sign at the entrance.  The brick wall will extend across all of 

Tract “B” and Tract “C” except for the area of Tract “B” fronting the Tract “A” stormwater pond.  The 

applicant requests that the portion of the buffer tract in front of the stormwater pond occur as a wrought-iron 

style fence with a brink posts. 

 

Buffers are provided consistent with the Land Development Code.  

 

Abutting the eastern boundary of Ponkan Reserve North is a field office and operations center for Duke 

Energy’s local service facility.  A buffer wall is not located along the western boundary of the Duke Energy 

property.   A screen wall is not required by the Land Development Code, and screen wall is not proposed by 

within the Preliminary Development Plan.  Future homeowners will have the option to install a fence along their 

rear lot lines. 

 

Tree Program: 

The following is a summary of the tree replacement program: 

 

Total inches on-site:     8,665 

Total number of specimen trees:     19 

Total inches removed:    4,590 

Total inches retained:    4,043     

Total specimen inches retained:    752 

Total inches required:    3,885 

Total inches replaced:    1,005  

Total inches post development: 5,058 

 

Based on the number of tree inches preserved and additional tree inches replaced, a tree mitigation fee is not 

required for this project. 

 

All preserved trees shall be protected during lot construction and grading.  Appropriate tree barricades shall be 

installed around each tree or group of trees along the tree drip line.  A detail of the tree protection barrier shall 

be included within the Final Development Plan. 

 

WAIVER REQUEST 
A six-foot brick wall is required within Tract “B” landscape buffer in front of the Tract “A” stormwater pond.  

In lieu of a solid brick wall in front of the stormwater pond, a wrought-iron style, brick post fence will be 

provided.  The remaining areas of Tract “B” will contain a solid brick wall. 

   

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency 

mitigation agreement has been approved by OCPS.  A school mitigation agreement has been accepted by OCPS 
Page 153



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 4 

 

and is currently in the process of being executed and recorded. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 10, 2015 - Planning Commission, 5:01 p.m. 

March 18, 2015 - City Council, 8:00 p.m. 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the Ponkan Reserve North – Final 

Development Plan/Plat, and a Waiver to allow a wrought-iron style/brick post fence in lieu of a solid brick wall 

in front of Tract “A” stormwater pond, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 10, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the Ponkan 

Reserve North – Final Development Plan/Plat, and a Waiver to allow a wrought-iron style/brick post fence in 

lieu of a solid brick wall in front of Tract “A” stormwater pond, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Approve the Ponkan Reserve North – Final Development Plan/Plat; and issue the Final Development Order. 

 

This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 

made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

Page 154



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 18, 2015 

PONKAN RESERVE NORTH SUBDIVISION – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 

PAGE 5 

 

Clyde Marie Brown, c/o Donna L. Helton 
June Engineering Consultants, Inc., 

c/o Jeffrey A. Sedloff and Jimmy Dunn 

Ponkan Reserve North Subdivision 

 25.48 +/- Acres 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 51 Single Family Lots 
   Parcel ID #s: 21-20-28-0000-00-003, 21-20-28-0000-00-004, 
     28-20-28-0000-00-003, and 28-20-28-0000-00-004  

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

VICINTY MAP 

Subject 

Property 

Page 155



  

Page 156



 

 

  

Page 157



 

 

  

Page 158



 

 

  

Page 159



 

  

Page 160



 

Page 161



Page 162 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Administrative Report - Glenn Irby - City Administrator 

  

Page 162



Administrative Report 

March 18, 2015 

                  To: Mayor and City Council 
From:  Glenn Irby, City Administrator 
 

Page 163



Finance - February  

$84,351 
$178,219 $159,532 $154,666 

$908,474 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Sewer Impact  

$46,197 

$113,328 $106,494 $123,404 

$223,309 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Water Impact 

$112,843 

$225,806 

$149,111 $161,534 

$283,262 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Transportation Impact 

$273,861 $254,475 
$301,527 

$332,775 

$476,667 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

School Impact 

Page 164



Finance - February  

$33,096 
$51,661 

$82,740 
$68,556 

$181,473 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reuse Impact  

$5,062 

$9,883 
$12,293 $12,293 

$18,320 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Recreation Impact 

170 

181 180.26 

167.42 
165.4 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Average Potable Water Billed 

30 28 

50 

71 

51 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

New Potable  

Meters Set 

Page 165



Finance / Utility Billing - February  

2267 2324 2511 
2894 2989 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

ACH   

3237 3292 

3631 
3806 3759 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Office Window   

1404 1413 
1376 

1305 

1239 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Drop Box   

4785 
4707 4692 4657 

4479 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Drive-Up 

Window 

7580 8497 
9930 10970 

12377 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Web   
15311 

14372 14111 

13005 12883 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Mailed   

Page 166



Community Development - February  

14 
18 20 

13 
17 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Arbor Permits 

$50 $23 

$690 

$242 
$190 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Arbor 
 Revenues 

$600 $2,746 

$42,250 

$900 $815 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Tree Bank Revenues 

Page 167



Community Development / Building- February  

9 
15 

22 
18 19 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Automated Phone 

System Requests   

339 350 394 

744 
627 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Internet Inspection 

Requests 

951 835 

1383 
1803 

843 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Office Inspection 

Requests 

Page 168



Community Development / Building- February  

482 448 
616 

692 636 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Permits Issued 

$18,206,347 

$53,238,174 

$19,973,857 $22,476,557 
$15,150,864 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Value of  

Construction 

29 33 
42 

82 

34 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Certificates of 

Occupancy Issued 

1299 1200 

1724 

2566 

1489 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Inspections  Performed 

Page 169



Public Services / Water Plants - February  

6.69 
6.47 

6.67 

6.06 
6.33 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Water Plant – Average 

Daily Flow 

2.53 2.56 2.6 2.85 3.07 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Wastewater  Plant 

Average Daily Flow 

127 
160.2 156.1 

130.94 133 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reclaimed Gallons 

Produced 

116.25 
160 140.6 

117.4 113.27 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reclaimed Gallons 

Used 

Page 170



Public Services / Water Plants - February  

6.69 
6.47 

6.67 

6.06 
6.33 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Water Plant – Average 

Daily Flow 

2.53 2.56 2.6 2.85 3.07 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Wastewater  Plant 

Average Daily Flow 

127 
160.2 156.1 

130.94 133 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reclaimed Gallons 

Produced 

116.25 
160 140.6 

117.4 113.27 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Reclaimed Gallons 

Used 

Page 171



Public Services / Sanitation - February  

13452 13438 
13784 13874 

14734 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Residential Customers 

639 640 640 

653 
660 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Commercial Customers 

12444 12984 13562 
15245 15705 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Recycling Customers 

Page 172



Public Services / Water Conservation - February  

2 

53 

2 3 0 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Program Rebates 

26 

2 1 1 
3 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Rain Sensors Issued 

41 
34 

21 
28 29 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

System Evaluations 

$284  

$65  

$0  

$175  

$0  

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Rebate Value 

Page 173



Public Services / Recreation - February  

104 

530 546 510 

359 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Program Events 
33 

37 
34 

26 

34 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Senior Programs 

471 
405 418 386 395 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Facility Rentals 

6060 

21798 

34870 
29245 27085 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Event Attendees 

Page 174



Fire - February  

666 

636 

677 684 

715 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

EMS Calls For Service 

230 
266 

206 187 

264 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

NFIRS Calls For 

Service 

459 499 518 491 
554 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Annual Inspections 

Page 175



Police - February  

526 

323 

586 
515 

262 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Uniform Traffic Citations 
36 

27 

18 

12 

19 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

DUI Arrests 

165 

79 

130 126 

83 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Warning Citations 

3 1 

64 

8 4 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Parking Citations 

Page 176



Police / Code Enforcement - February  

8 

19 

8 

32 

25 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Unkempt Cases 

5 
13 9 

41 42 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Disabled Vehicle Cases 

18 

53 43 

112 
125 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Total Code Enforcement Cases 

Page 177



Administrative Services - February  

52 47 

66 61 
68 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

New Business Tax 

77 
63 

43 45 49 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Business Tax Renewals 

Page 178



Visits      

 325 

Users        
283 

Page 
Views 
1500 

Pages/Visit  
4.54 

Avg. Visit 
Duration 
00:02:54 

% New 
Visits 

50.28% 

A.S.K. 

Apopka Service Kiosk 

January - February 

Page 179



Information Technology - February 
 

715 

1609 1808 

2484 
3029 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Building Webpage Visits 

57659 

96619 104134 
85666 

99658 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Homepage Visits 

Page 180



Thank You 
 

For questions, call (407) 703-1750 

Page 181



Page 182 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-08 - Supporting "One Apopka For Progress". 

  

Page 182



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March 18, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        Administration 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    ___________________ 

 X   OTHER:  New Business -Resolution 

  
 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2015-08 – SUPPORTING “ONE APOPKA FOR PROGRESS” 

 

 

Request: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2015-08 

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City Council shall support and promote “One Apopka For Progress”, whereby no person or 

community is left behind in the economic development process. 

 

The primary outcome of “One Apopka For Progress” shall be justice, jobs and a joyful and safe quality of 

life for all people residing within the city limits of Apopka, Florida. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2015-08 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 183



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-08 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA SUPPORTING “ONE APOPKA 

FOR PROGRESS”, PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka is the second largest city in Orange County, Florida; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has a diverse population of nearly 46,000 people; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka is a city of and for children, seniors, families, businesses, 

and tourists; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka belongs to all people residing within the city limits; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has a transparent city government/ 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA: 

SECTION 1. The City Council shall support and promote “ONE APOPKA FOR PROGRESS” 

WHEREBY NO PERSON OR COMMUNITY is LEFT BEHIND in the ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT PROCESS (i.e., jobs, contracts, business/program development) for a better 

quality of life in a caring, fair, inclusive, and safe environment. 

SECTION 2. Let it be further resolved, that the primary outcomes of “ONE APOPKA FOR 

PROGRESS” shall be JUSTICE, JOBS, and a JOYFUL and SAFE QUALITY of LIFE for ALL 

PEOPLE residing within the city limits of Apopka, Florida. 

 

Passed and Adopted by the City Council of the City of Apopka this ____ day of _____, 2015. 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

_________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 184



Page 185 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. City Council discussion and determination on the hiring of 30 summer positions 

through the Professional Opportunities Program for Students, Inc.  

  

Page 185



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March18, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:         Administration 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    ___________________ 

 X  OTHER: New Business  

  
 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL OPPORTUNITIES PROGRAM FOR STUDENTS, INC. 

 

 

Request: COUNCIL DISCUSSION AND DETERMINATION ON THE HIRING OF 30 

STUDENT POSITIONS DURING SUMMER BREAK, AT A COST OF $65,277.00 

 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

 
In the past there has been discussion, at various times, having to do with hiring teenagers during summer break to do 

work within the city.  Some believe 100 teens would be a good number, while others believe less would be good.  

To that end, staff has tried to determine what jobs would be suitable but come to the same conclusion: many of the 

jobs are dangerous if someone is not properly trained and/or closely supervised and this is not possible in most cases. 

Other thoughts are to employee teens in office environments where filing and other clerical tasks need to be done.  

However, the conclusion is there are not many needs for this, especially for 100 positions.  However, an 

organization called Professional Opportunities Program for Students, Inc. [POPS] may be able to help. 

For a total fee of $2,175.90 per teen, POPS will find employment for a minimum of 30 teens.  They each will work 

a total of 31 hours per week for a total of six [6] weeks over the summer and POPS will place them in jobs suitable 

to their abilities.  If the city has 30 positions, POPS will place all 30 within those jobs.  If it does not, they will be 

placed in businesses willing to take on a teen during the summer.  The fee per teen pays their wages, payroll taxes 

and workers’ compensation, professional dress fund and transportation stipend, background check on the teen and 

POPS will keep an administration fee of $485 per teen.  The program is akin to a temporary employment agency 

except this program is geared toward helping teenagers find summer employment.  The cost to the city for 30 teens 

would be $65,277. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

General Fund Reserves 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

City Council discussion and determination on the hiring of 30 summer positions, at a cost to the City of 

$65,277.00. 

 

Page 186



  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 187


	Top
	1. 3/18/15 - Proclamation - Esposito
	2. 03/18/15 - Proclamation - Boys &amp; girls Club Week
	3. 03/18/15 - Proclamation - Cooper
	4. 3/18/15 -Presentation - Parks &amp; Rec Master Plan
	Parks Presentation.pdf

	1. 03-18-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Property Nelson Henry
	Property Purchase Nelson Henry.pdf
	Consent Agenda Item 1.pdf

	2. 03-18-15 - Consent Agenda - PS Fuel Bid 2015-01 
	Fuel Bid 15-01.pdf

	1. 03-18-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord# 2372 - Large Scale FLU - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lake Investments, LLC
	1 Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lk Invest LS FLUM  - CC 03-18-15 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord # 2372 - Avian Pointe - Apopka Clear Lake Invest LS FLUM.pdf
	3 09-09-14 - FDOE Apopka 14-1ESR.pdf
	4 09-17-14 - SJRWMD Comment Letter - Apopka 14-1ESR.pdf
	5 09-23-14 - DHR Project File #2014-4305 - Avian Pointe.pdf
	6 09-25-14 - DEO - Avian Pointe.pdf
	7 09-25-14 - FDOT - Apopka 14-1ESR.pdf
	8 City Response to FDOT.pdf
	9 PubAff02-27-15.pdf

	2. 03-18-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2386 - Florida Land Trust #111 - ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC - PUD Master Plan
	1 Florida Land Trust #111 ZON_PUD Master Site Plan CC 03-18-15 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord #2386 - Florida Land Trust #111 ZON_PUD Master Site Plan.pdf
	3 Florida Land Trust 111 ZON_PUD Master Plan.pdf
	4 EXHIBIT B PUD Development Standards.pdf
	5 Exhibit B1 Northern Landscape Buffer.pdf
	6 CityOfApopkaPub152432-724.pdf

	3. 03-18-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2405 - Florida Land Trust #111 - ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC - R-1AAA
	1 Florida Land Trust #111 ZON - R1AAA - CC 03-18-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2405 - Florida Land Trust #111 ZON - R-1AAA - ZON.pdf
	3 Supporting LDC Information.pdf
	4 Legal Opinion Memo re Rezoning 12 22 14.pdf
	Alex Toledo E-Mail 01-13-2015 w_attachments.pdf

	4. 03-18-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2411 - FLU Amend - McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W Kelly Park Road
	1 McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W Kelly Park Rd -  FLU - CC 03-18-15.pdf
	2 Ord 2411 - McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W Kelly Park Rd - FLU.pdf

	5. 03-18-15 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2412 - McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W Kelly Park Road
	1 McCullough - 1505 W Kelly Park Rd - ZON - CC - 3-18-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2412 - McCarthy McCollough - 1505 W Kelly Park Rd ZON.pdf

	6. 03/18/15 - Reso #2015-07 - Art &amp; Foliage
	Resolution greensheet.pdf
	Resolution #2015-07 - Art &amp;Foliage Festival.pdf

	1. 03-18-15 - CC - Site Plans - Preliminary Development Plan - Rock Springs Estates, south of West Lester Road, east of Vick Road
	1 Rock Springs Estates PDP - CC - 03-18-15.pdf
	2 Rock Springs Estate PDP Site Plan.pdf
	3 Rock Springs Estates PDP Landscape Plans.pdf

	2. 03-18-15 - CC - Site Plans - Final Development Plan/Plat - Ponkan Reserve North, 301 Ponkan Road
	1 Ponkan Reserve North FDP - CC 03.18.15.pdf
	2 Ponkan Reserve North Site Plan_Plat.pdf

	1. 03/18/15 - Administrative Report
	Administrative Report.pdf

	1. 03/18/15 - New Business - Reso
	One Apopka For Progress.docx
	Reso 2015-08 One Apopka for Progress.docx

	2. 3/18/15 - New Business Council -POPS
	POPS.docx

	Bottom

